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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN W& D

OVERALL FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, North Mining Shares Company Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) recorded
a revenue of approximately HK$468,601,000, representing an increase
of approximately 83% as compared with 2016 of approximately
HK$256,004,000. Such increase was mainly attributable to the Group’s
new business segments, namely (i) chemical trading operation; and
(i) security technologies operations which were commenced through
acquisition of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded a loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$145,774,000
(2016: loss of approximately HK$324,425,000), representing a decrease
of 556% as compared with last year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Group are: (i) mining operations —
exploitation and trading of mineral resources; (i) property management
operations; (i) chemical trading operations — manufacturing and sale of
chemical products; and (iv) security technologies operations — research,
development and sale of security technologies products. New business
segments, namely chemical trading and security technologies operation,
were added to the Group’s segment analysis during the year under
review. An analysis of each of these business segments is presented
below:

Mining Operations - Exploitation and Trading of
Mineral Resources

Molybdenum Mine

The Group’s mining operation mainly includes the exploitation and
production of molybdenum concentrate in the PRC. Our molybdenum
concentrate was produced by the molybdenum mine operated by
Shaanxi Province Luo Nan Xian Jiu Long Kuang Ye Company Limited
(“Jiu Long Kuang Ye”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. The
grading of molybdenum concentrate produced by our molybdenum mine
was approximately 45%-50%.
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During the year under review, the volume of molybdenum concentrate
produced was approximately 3,104 tonnes (2016: 1,021 tonnes).
The sales volume of molybdenum concentrate was approximately
3,194 tonnes (2016: 4,544 tonnes). The average selling price of
molybdenum concentrate was approximately HK$63,416 per tonne
(2016: HK$54,645). During the year under review, the Group’s mining
operation contributed revenue of approximately HK$202,928,000 (2016:
approximately HK$248,311,000) to the Group. The cost of sales was
approximately HK$162,021,000 (2016: approximately HK$213,608,000).
Gross profit was approximately HK$40,907,000 (2016: approximately
HK$34,703,000) and the gross profit margin was 20% (2016: 14%),
representing an increase of 17% as compared with last year. The increase
in gross profit margin was mainly due to the increase in average selling
price of molybdenum concentrate from about HK$54,645 per tonne in
2016 to HK$63,416 per tonne in 2017.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the directors of the Company (the
“Directors” or the “Board”) hired an independent professional valuation
firm to assess the value in use of the Group’s mining operation on a
yearly basis. The basis for assessing the value in use was based on the
discount cash flow method (the “DCF”). In the opinion of the Directors,
the DCF method is the best way to reflect the value in use of the Group’s
mining operation. During the year under review, there was no change in
the valuation method and the Directors had the consensus to adopt a
consistent valuation methodology and accounting policy in accounting for
such mining operation because there would be no fundamental change in
the mining industry and external environment.

The source data and inputs of the DCF method were mainly comprised
of: () the estimated sales of molybdenum concentrate; and (i) major
operating expenses. The assumptions used in the DCF method were
mainly related to the forecasting of: (i) estimated sales volume of
molybdenum concentrate based on the corresponding molybdenum
production plan; (i) the average molybdenum price over the past years; (iii)
major operating expenses based on actual daily operating expenditures;
and (iv) management’s best estimate of the future cash outflow, including
changes in working capital, and the incremental capital expenditure
foreseeable to be incurred. A discount rate of 11% was used for the DCF
method projections, which was determined with reference to the weighted
average cost of capital.
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Based on the assessment of the value in use, no impairment loss had
been provided in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017.

In view of a rising trend of the molybdenum price, the Board is of opinion
that there is a necessity for expanding our production and maximizing the
production capacity of our existing processing plants in an effective way.
In addition, a steep side slope formed as a result of insufficient stripping
processing at Xi Daliang section of the open pit mine. To unfold the
entire border of the open pit mine, we reduced the side slope to ensure
production safety. As a result, the stripping project at the Xi Daliang was
taken place in 2016 due to corporate production efficiency and workplace
safety.

The stripping project at Xi Daliang refers to the entire stripping project in
the western part of the Wang Hegou Open Pit Mine in proximity with the
county border, which includes two ridges at Xi Daliang and Wang Gou
Xiliang and the bordering slopes. By elevation, this project has the highest
point of 1,368 meters and the lowest point of 1,168 meters, respectively.
By length and average width, this project extends 620 meters and
approximately 200 meters, respectively. The horizontal projection area
accounts for one third of the boundary of the entire open pit mine. The
working dimension is approximately 5,935,600 cubic meters. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group incurred stripping costs
of approximately HK$175,336,000 to expand additional areas for
exploitation of molybdenum concentrate. The stripping project was still on
going in 2017.

Potassium Feldspar Mine

During the year under review, the Group acquired a potassium feldspar
mine through an acquisition of subsidiaries. The potassium feldspar
mine is located in Shaanxi Province, the PRC. The in-pit indicated and
inferred mineral resource estimates for the potassium feldspar mine
were approximately 63.2 million tonnes and approximately 40.5 million
tonnes respectively. During the year under review, no revenue was
generated by the potassium feldspar mine as the operation was still under
development.

6 North Mining Shares Company Limited Annual Report 2017

BESFEAEENTGH BE-_Z—+tF+=A
=+ —BHIFEZEEUHREBETIRAER
e

HRFAERALANDTR EXERRFTERAKN
EEMABROIAEERERBEEMAN EELR
He b dh - BERHETE AR BOR A B 49 K Bk T
FrBEEKEREES  BTRABRXERZRR
BB  REL2EE At BEREREEN
s TESHEE AARKBEEERER -F
—NEHETe

FORBRHEE TIR2HE TMERRBEASZABRA
MEERSIR SEEAR  TEARMEL
RLARERE LY TiR&= 51,368 KSR &I
1,168 K212 » RE620K @ FHEE 200K
KERyEELHEEEABELOSRAN=ZVZ
— TIEEK#95,935,6003 5K BHE-ZT—X
F+ZA=+T—ALFE AEERAMBEIER
BRI AN 49175,336,000/8 7T * LATE K SEAE R Y
HAREE - JEIRER - —tFNFEETT

R AE

REBEFE  AEEFBKESZRNERRIRSE
—Ef RO - ZFEABOLAPERAS &
2 i) S HE B IR 4 &R 2 (4 51 9 5l 49 463,200,000
Wi 140,500,000 - REEEFE - AR R A
TEADTE B R PR ER + BRI L O 8 2 A Wi s o



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEN WD

Property management operations

During the year under review, the performance of the Group’s property
management operations was relatively stable. For the year ended
31 December 2017, revenue generated from this segment was
approximately HK$7,487,000 (2016: HK$7,693,000), representing a
decrease of approximately 2.68% (2016: 0.1%) as compared to last year.

Chemical trading operations

The Group’s chemical trading operations mainly includes manufacturing
and sale of chemical products in the PRC. Our chemical products were
produced by Anhui Tongxi Chemical Company Limited (“Anhui Tongxi”),
a non-wholly owned subsidiary acquired on 19 September 2017. Upon
completion of the acquisition of Anhui Tongxi, revenue generated from
this segment to the Group was approximately HK$199,694,000. The
cost of sales was approximately HK$168,998,000. Gross profit was
approximately HK$30,696,000 and the gross profit margin was 15%.

Security technologies operations

The Group’s security technologies operations mainly includes research
and development of face recognition technologies in the PRC. Our
security technologies and service were provided by Xinjinag Casiavision
Security Technology Company Limited and Xinjiang Xintongxing
Telecommunication Engineering Company Limited (“Xinjiang Group”),
which were wholly owned subsidiaries acquired on 7 September 2017.
Upon completion of the acquisition of Xinjiang Group, revenue generated
from this segment to the Group was approximately HK$58,492,000.
The cost of sales was approximately HK$24,769,000. Gross profit was
approximately HK$33,723,000 and the gross profit margin was 58%.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION

On 19 January 2017, the Group completed the acquisition of 65%
equity interests in Wealth Pioneer Group Limited and its subsidiaries
(“Wealth Pioneer Group”) at a consideration of HK$900 million which was
satisfied as to HK$400 million by cash and HK$500 million by issuance
of promissory notes. During the year under review, the promissory notes
were fully settled. The principal asset of Wealth Pioneer Group is the
potassium feldspar mine located in Shaanxi Province, the PRC. The in-
pit indicated and inferred mineral resource estimates for the potassium
feldspar mine were approximately 63.2 million tonnes and approximately
40.5 million tonnes respectively according to a technical report from an
international mining technical advisory firm. The Board is of the view that
the acquisition of Wealth Pioneer Group provides a prime opportunity for
the Group to enter into the potassium feldspar mineral resources industry
and diversify the revenue stream of the Group in future, which is expected
to increase the Shareholders’ value and benefit the Company and its
Shareholders as a whole.

On 7 September 2017, the Group completed the acquisition of 100%
equity interests in Gold Pearl Investment Limited and its subsidiaries
(“Gold Pearl”) at a consideration of HK$430,000,000 in cash. The major
subsidiary of Gold Pearl was Xinjiang Group which was principally
engaged in the research and product development of face recognition
technology and intelligent video analysis technology and application.
Xinjiang Group is currently engaged in two public security projects in
the PRC, namely Karamay PingAn City Project and Zhundong PingAn
City Project. The Board is of the view that the acquisition of Gold Pearl
provides a prime opportunity for the Group to enter into the security
industry and diversify the revenue stream of the Group in future, which is
expected to increase the Shareholders’ value and benefit the Company
and its shareholders as a whole.

On 19 September 2017, the Group completed the acquisition of 51%
equity interests in Anhui Tongxin Chemical Company Limited (“Anhui
Tongxin”) at a consideration of RMB40,800,000 in cash. Anhui Tongxin is
principally engaged in the research and development, sales and marketing
of chemical products (apart from dangerous chemicals) and the provision
of related technical services. The Board is of the view that the acquisition
will enable the Group to diversify the Group’s business in a realm with
potential growth opportunity and can provide another source of revenue
to the Group so as to diversify its business portfolio.
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PROSPECTS

Despite various challenges in the global economy, China, as one of the
world’s key driver of economic growth, managed to maintain substantial
investment in infrastructure. With the implementation of the “13th Five-
Year Plan” and the “One Belt, One Road” initiative, steady and moderate
economic growth is well expected.

During the year under review, the Group invested in the security business
in Xinjiang Autonomous Region (“Xinjiang”). Since Xinjiang has been
relying on civil defense organizations to maintain law and order for a
number of years, its standard is far below the level of China’s first-tier
cities. Accordingly, the PRC government is concerned about the local
law and order and the existing security system is required to be gradually
upgraded. Given the growth potential of the security market of the PRC,
the prospects of the security industry is expected to be bright. During the
year under review, the Group also invested in the chemical business, and
it is expected that the investment in chemical business will provide the
Group with an alternative source of revenue.

The price of molybdenum became stabilised in 2017, and it is expected
the price of molybdenum concentrates will remain steady in 2018.
In respect of the potassium mine acquired at the beginning of 2017,
minerals produced therefrom can be processed into potassium sulphate
which is able to improve sail fertility and enhance corps output. According
to a survey conducted by the Ministry of Agriculture of the PRC,
approximately 80% of arable land in the PRC is in lack of potassium,
which will contribute to the rising demand for potassium fertilizer. It is
expected the price of potassium will also remain steady in 2018.

The Group will make every endeavor to keep abreast of the changing
market conditions, proactively identify investment opportunities and
expand its mineral resources in order to broaden the revenue base of
the Group, enhance its future financial performance and profitability, and
fine tune its business strategies when the Directors of the Company
think appropriate. Moreover, the Group is seeking for further operating
efficiency across the business. We are confident in the future and
committed to continuous growth of the Company.

Bl

BEUERACEFERZUE EEAERRER
SIEZ—HHE BERADARBFRARR
BeE [+=H ) RBIHEE  [—F 3] R &
BERFRBEMERERESES-

REBFERN AEERETURHEBELE AR
([F58)) 2B %% AN BLSEF R —ERER
DA AER A% HIREEREN R E — AR K
oA MEBFEIE R  MIRERE
AGAEFEHARELSKF - ZEBEIPRERLH
BZREEN BMRLITREZIARRATES -
REEFER AEEGRE TIETER 'Y
RECTIEBERARERTS —WAKR-

HNERR T -tFREER Bt =22\
FRBEMWEBREERT TR - MR _T—LF
P48 8 B0 #7 9 - EL AT AR ER A AR AR BR SR RIVE R AR
HAETERE EREVEE-RETEAR
HAMBEEXRRAE  FEONAKTERT B
WIEWBRE LANBE B —F—\FHD
EROEBERFRE -

AEBEBBNNRZERTANES BIHEREITER
B BAHBEER FBARMEAREE AR
RAERREPF BRI NENEES  LRARF]
EERRAERIBEIBREEBRE BN K
KEESHE— PRI EBROELRE - BAY
ARFEMEL  ABRAPMEERRBFELER-

2017 Fi A FWMERDBRAE 9



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWR DM

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flow and proceeds from suitable source of funding. During the
year under review, the Group recorded a cash outflow of approximately
HK$539,906,000 (2016: inflow of approximately HK$370,641,000) which
was mainly due to the Group used internal cash resources to facilitate for
the acquisition of subsidiaries in 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had outstanding bank loans and
other borrowings at the amount of approximately HK$847,664,000 (2016:
approximately HK$361,167,000). The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31
December 2017 was approximately 31.91% (2016: 7.94%). The increase
in gearing ratio was mainly due to the increase in proportion of interest
bearing bank borrowings to total liability and equity during the year under
review. The Board will closely monitor the liquidity position of the Group to
ensure the Group has sufficient funding to settle the debts when fall due.
As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s current ratio was approximately
0.74 (2016: approximately 2.62).

The decrease in current ratio was mainly due to increase in bank loans
and other borrowings during the year under review. As at 31 December
2017, the Group’s debt to equity ratio was approximately 0.62 (2016:
approximately 0.37). The increase in debt to equity ratio was mainly due
the increase in borrowing during the year under review.

The ratio was calculated by dividing the total liabilities of approximately
HK$1,929,976,000 (2016: approximately HK$1,252,226,000) by
equity attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$3,120,678,000 (2016: approximately HK$3,339,284,000). Overall,
the Board believes that the Group has a healthy financial position and has
sufficient resources to satisfy its capital expenditure and working capital
requirement.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND TREASURY POLICIES
Capital Structure

The Group’s capital structure as at 31 December 2017 mainly comprised
of current assets of approximately HK$955,339,000 (2016: approximately
HK$1,674,733,000), current liabilities of approximately HK$1,284,428,000
(2016: approximately HK$638,643,000) and equity attributable to
owners of the Company of approximately HK$3,120,678,000 (2016:
approximately HK$3,339,284,000).
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Current assets mainly comprised of () cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$162,317,000 (2016: approximately HK$596,003,000);
(i) inventories of approximately HK$472,640,000 (2016: approximately
HK$413,824,000); and (iii) prepayments, deposits and other
receivables of approximately HK$252,408,000 (2016: approximately
HK$356,854,000).

Current liabilities mainly comprised of (i) borrowings of approximately
HK$596,343,000 (2016: approximately HK$361,167,000); (i) trade and
bill payables of approximately HK$184,859,000 (2016: approximately
HK$70,599,000); and (i) accruals and other payables of approximately
HK$148,775,000 (2016: approximately HK$95,677,000).

Issued Convertible Bonds

During the year under review, the Group did not issue any convertible
bonds. During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group issued two
convertible bonds: (i) convertible bond in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$98,838,000 on 21 December 2016. The interest rate is 10% per
annum, from the date of issue payable annually in arrears. The bondholder
will have the right to convert the whole or part of the principal amount of
the convertible bond into the conversion shares at an initial conversion
price of HK$0.15 per share (subject to adjustment) at any time and from
time to time, between the date of issue of the convertible bond, and
up to the date falling on the second anniversary of the date of issue of
the convertible bond; and (i) convertible bond in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$250,000,000 on 29 December 2016. The interest rate is
10% per annum, from the date of issue payable annually in arrears. The
bondholder will have the right to convert the whole or part of the principal
amount of the convertible bond into the Conversion Shares at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.15 per share (subject to adjustment) at any time
and from time to time, between the date of issue of the convertible bond,
and up to the date falling on the second anniversary of the date of issue of
the convertible bond.

Shares buyback

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 25 September
2017, 26 September 2017, 28 September 2017 and 12 October 2017,
the Company bought back shares through Grand Investment (Securities)
Limited, pursuant to which the directors have agreed to share buyback,
and the Company has agreed to buy back up to 30,180,000 shares
at market price of HK$0.1592 per shares; 7,650,000 shares at market
price of HK$0.1593 per shares; 12,330,000 shares at market price of
HK$0.1622 per shares and 12,000,000 shares at HK$0.1610 per shares
respectively. The Shares were cancelled in the stock market on 6 October
2017 and 18 October 2017 for the announcement in September and
October respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER W R DM

Subscription of Shares

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 8 December 2016,
the Company entered into the Shares Subscription Agreement with
Hong Kong Bridge Investments Limited, pursuant to which the Share
Subscriber has agreed to subscribe, and the Company has agreed to
issue and allot for up to 1,654,929,577 new Shares at the Subscription
Price of HK$0.142 per Subscription Share (“Shares Subscription”). The
Shares Subscription was completed on 21 December 2016.

There was no subscription of shares during the year ended 31 December
2017.

Treasury Policies

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the business activities of the
Group were mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The
Board does not consider that the Group is significantly exposed to any
foreign currency exchange risk. It is the Group’s treasury policy to manage
its foreign currency exposure whenever such financial impact is material to
the Group. For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group
did not employ any financial instruments for hedging purpose and was not
engaged in foreign currency speculative activities.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWING AND CHARGES
OF GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had bank and other borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$847,664,000 (2016: HK$361,167,000).
As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s interest bearing bank loans
were carried at effective interest rates from 5% to 12% per annum and
were secured by (i) guarantees from corporate companies; (i) pledged
of property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments from the
subsidiaries of the Group; (i) guarantees from a subsidiary of the Group
and the subsidiary’s minority shareholders; and (iv) guarantee from the
ultimate control party.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (2016: Nil).

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed 896 full time employees
(2016: 772 employees). Employees’ remuneration packages are
structured and reviewed with reference to the nature of the jobs, market
condition and individual merits. The Group also provides other employee
benefits including year-end double pay, mandatory provident fund and
medical insurance.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yang Ying Min, aged 48, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 25 August 2014 and was subsequently appointed as
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 22 September in the same
year. He was appointed as the Chairman of the Board of the Company
on 4 January 2016. Mr. Yang graduated from Peoples Public Security
University of China with a Bachelor of Laws LL.B.. After graduation, he
worked in Xian Municipal government, Shaanxi Province, China. In 2010,
he joined Shaanxi Province Luo Nan Xian Jiu Long Kuang Ye Company
Limited (“Jiu Long Kuang Ye”), the Company’s subsidiary, as deputy
managing director. In 2012, he was appointed as chairman of Jiu Long
Kuang Ye. Mr. Yang has extensive experience in management and legal
affairs relevant to mining industry.

Mr. Qian Yi Dong, aged 32, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company on 15 March 2011 and was then appointed as the Deputy
Chairman of the Board on 21 April 2011. He is also currently a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Qian graduated from Beijing
Normal University Zhuhai majored in electronic commerce. He is also a
director of Universal Union Limited and China Wan Tai Group Limited, the
controlling shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Jia Kun, aged 70, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 14 August 2009, and is also currently a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He graduated from Shanghai
Education College and Shanghai Business College where he majored in
professional mathematics and financial management respectively. He has
extensive experience in financial management. Currently, he is the general
manager of finance of Wan Tai Group Limited and the legal representative
and chairman of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary Shanghai Yuan
Bei Trading Company Limited.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. William Fong, aged 38, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director and the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the
Company on 15 October 2015. He holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration from the University of Hong Kong and a Bachelor’s Degree
(Hons) in Accountancy from City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Fong has
over ten years of experience in audit and finance. He has been the chief
financial officer of China Kangda Food Company Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”) since July 2010. Before that, Mr. Fong had respectively
worked in two international accounting firms for seven years. He is a
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong respectively.

Mr. Leung Kar Fai, aged 39, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director and the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company on 24 November 2015. He holds a Master
of Philosophy in Earth Sciences and Bachelor of Science (First Class
Honours) from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Leung has expensive
experience in mineral exploration, project management, mining project
evaluation as well as course management related to geology and natural
resources management. He is currently the director of Dragon Global
Group and the member of the Task Force on Gemstone Testing, Hong
Kong Accreditation Service. Mr. Leung is currently the chairman of the
Geological Society of Hong Kong and the founding chairman of Hong
Kong Mining Investment Professional Association.

Dato Dr. Cheng Chak Ho, aged 48, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 12 April 2001. Dato Dr.
Cheng obtained a Bachelor of Science in Building, a Master degree in
Urban Design from the University of Hong Kong. He has over 25 years’
experience in property development, property investment, valuation and
corporate finance. Among others, Dato Dr. Cheng is a Fellow of: Institute
of Public Accountants, The Royal Society of Medicine, The Association
of International Accountants, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors, The
Society of Operations Engineers, and Institution of Plant Engineers.

Dato Dr. Cheng has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Combest Holdings Limited (stock code: 8190, listed on the
GEM Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) on 22 November 2016.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The Directors of the Company present their report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Group are mining operations — exploitation
and exploration, trading of mineral resources, property management
operations, manufacture and sales of chemical products and sales of
security technologies. Details of the Group’s principal subsidiaries are set
out in Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements. New business
segments, namely chemical trading and security technologies operation
were added to Group’s business segment during the year.

An analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Group during the financial year are set out in Note 7 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31 December 2017, the
material factors underlying its results and financial position and material
attributable factors of the development and likely future developments
of the Group’s business, are provided throughout this Annual Report,
particularly in the following separate sections:

(@)  Review of the Group’s business — “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 4 to 12;

(b)  The principal risks and uncertainties the Group is facing — “Report
of the Directors” on pages 15 to 30;

(c)  Future development in the Group’s business — “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 4 to 12;

(d) Analysis using financial key performance indicators —and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 4 to 12 and
“Summary of Financial Information” on page 180;

(e) Information about the Group’s Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) policies and performance — ESG Report on
pages 44 to 62;
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

Discussion on the Group’s compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations — “Report of the Directors” on pages 15 to 30 and
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 31 to 43; and

An account of the Group’s key relationships with its employees,
customers and suppliers and others — “Report of the Directors” on
pages 15 to 30 and ESG Report on pages 44 to 62.

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

Although we have established the risk management system to identify,
analyse, evaluate and respond to risks, our business activities are subject
to the following risks, which could have material effects on our strategy,
operations, compliance and financial condition. We urge you to carefully
consider the risks described below:

1.

16

Economic Environment Risks

Affected by current macro-economy and policies at Mainland
China and abroad, the business of mining operations, property
management operations, chemical trading operations and security
technologies operations where the Company operates exits many
risks and uncertainties.

To cope with such risks, the Company made thorough research
and analysis on macro-economy, government policies, industrial
development, intensified market analysis and judgement and
adopted corresponding actions against potential risks. It
accelerated restructuring, transformation and upgrading, thus
cultivating new profit growth and enhancing its comprehensive
competitiveness and anti-risk capabilities.

Market Price Risks

The sharp fluctuation of molybdenum concentrate, chemical
products and security technologies products price mainly reflects
the change in supply and demand of molybdenum products,
chemical products and security technologies products, market
uncertainty and other factors out of control of the Group, including
but not limited to the overall economic situation, political unrest,
economic condition, availability of other metals, regulations of
governments both at Mainland China and abroad, natural disasters
and weather conditions. Price fluctuation will have a material impact
on the business, cash flow and revenue of the Group.

North Mining Shares Company Limited Annual Report 2017
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

To cope with the risk, the Company intensifies prudent judgement
on the market, fully brings about the effect of supervision and
control over market price risk and alert thereof, continuously
improves its risk control capability in market price and constantly
strengthens production costs and expenses control.

Safety and Environmental Risks

Stringent requirements in relation to safe production and
environmental protection ability for a company have been stipulated
in the Production Safety Law of People’s Republic of China and the
Environmental Protection Law of People’s Republic of China. As
the Company’s mining operation mainly includes the exploitation
and production of molybdenum concentrate, any safety or
environmental accident will inflict huge losses on the reputation and
assets of the Company.

To cope with the risk, the Company keeps improving management
rules, assigns responsibilities and further strengthens supervision
and examination in terms of safety and environmental protection.
It screens relevant hazards, takes preventive measures; constantly
increases awareness among enterprises and all employees in the
aspects of on-site management and safety and environmental
protection management by providing more training courses. It
also allocates more funds with a view to upgrade and reconstruct
technology and equipment, constantly promotes energy saving and
reduction of emissions.

Financial Risks

Details of financial risks are set out in Note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Environmental policies performance

The Group has taken initiatives to reduce energy consumption and
encourage recycle of office supplies and other materials. The Group will
continue to review and promote its environmental policies.

Compliance with the relevant laws and regulations

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has complied
in all material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the businesses and operations of the Group. During
the year under review, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

Relationship with employees and customers

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good relationship
with its employees and customers to meet its business goals. During the
year under review, there were no significant dispute between the Group
and its employees and customers.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the
state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 December 2017 are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 72 to 180.

The cashflows of the Group are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 77 to 78.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the Group’s single largest customer and
supplier accounted for approximately 12% (2016: 29%) and 8% (2016:
2%) respectively, of the Group’s total operating revenue and cost of
sales. The Group’s five largest customers and suppliers accounted for
approximately 39% (2016: 52%) and 28% (2016: 5.2%) of the Group’s
total operating revenue and cost of sales respectively.

At no time during the year had the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which, to the knowledge of the Directors,
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have any interest in
these major customers and suppliers.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 76.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

Details of the amount of the Company’s reserve distributable to
shareholders as at 31 December 2017 are set out in Note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are
set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

SUBSIDIARIES

The particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2017 are set out in Note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has repurchased 62,160,000 of its listed shares during
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil). Details of which set out in
note 28 to the consolidated financial statement.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Yang Ying Min (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Qian Yi Dong (Deputy Chairman)

Zhang Jia Kun

Li Li Juan (Resigned on 21 June 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

William Fong
Leung Kar Fai
Cheng Chak Ho

DIRECTORS RETIRING BY ROTATION

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws 87(1) and (2), Mr. Qian Yi
Dong, Mr. Fong William and Mr. Leung Kar Fai will retire from office by
rotation, and both of them being eligible, offer themselves for re-elections
at the AGM.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has an unexpired service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation, other than
normal statutory obligations.

The Directors’ remuneration for the financial year is set out in Note 10 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company at the annual general meeting held on 25 May 2011,
the Company adopted the share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”). A summary of the Share Option Scheme is as follows:

(1) Purposes of the Share Option Scheme

The principal purposes of the Share Option Scheme are to enable
the Group and any entity in which the Group holds any equity
interest (“Invested Entity”) to recruit and retain high calibre persons
and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group or
any Invested Entity, to recognise the contributions of the eligible
persons to the growth of the Group or any Invested Entity by
rewarding them with opportunities to obtain ownership interest in
the Company and to motivate and give incentives to these eligible
persons to continue to contribute to the long term success and
prosperity of the Group or any Invested Entity.

(2) Who may join
Persons who are eligible to the Share Option Scheme (“Eligible
Person(s)”) are any employee (whether full time or part time),
senior executive or officer, manager, director (including executive,
non-executive and independent non-executive director) or
consultant of the Company, any of its affiliates or any Invested
Entity, or any of their respective associates, chief executives, or
substantial shareholders, or any person, who, as determined by
the Board, have contributed or will contribute to the growth and

development of the Group or any Invested Entity.
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(3)

(4)

(5)

Total number of shares available for issue

Total number of shares available for issue are 1,300,261,670,
representing approximately 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of the AGM held on 25 May 2011.

On 26 July 2011, the Company granted 500,000 share options
to a consultant of the Company with 3 years of exercisable period
from 26 July 2011 to 25 July 2013. Upon the expiry of exercise
period, no share option was exercised, all outstanding share
options granted under the Share Option Scheme had been lapsed
accordingly.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, no share option had
been granted, exercised, lapsed, or was cancelled under the Share
Option Scheme.

As at 31 December 2017, total number of share available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme was 1,299,761,670, representing
6.05% of the issued shares of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible person

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each Eligible Person under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period must not exceed one (1) per cent. of the
shares in issue.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible person
who is a connected person

(@  each grant of option to an Eligible Person who is a director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company
or any of their respective associates, under the Share
Option Scheme must be approved by the independent
non-executive director(s) of the Company (excluding the
independent non-executive director who is the grantee of the
option); and
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(b)  where the Board proposes to grant any option to an Eligible
Person who is a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, and such option, if exercised in full,
would result in the total number of Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options already granted and
to be granted to such Eligible Person (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in the past 12-month
period up to and including the date of grant:

(i) representing in aggregate more than 0.1 per cent. of
the total number of Shares in issue; and

(ii) having an aggregate value (on the assumption that
all such Options had been exercised and all Shares
allotted), based on the closing price of the Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of each grant or, if that date is not a
business day, the business day immediately before, in
excess of HK$5,000,000.00,

such further grant of options must be approved by the
Shareholders. The Company must send a circular to the
Shareholders containing the information required under Rule 17.04
of the Listing Rules. All connected persons of the Company must
abstain from voting at their respective general meetings, except
that any connected person may vote against the relevant resolution
at such general meeting(s) provided that his or her intention to
do so has been stated in the circular to be sent to the relevant
shareholders. Any vote taken at the meeting to approve the grant of
such options must be taken on a poll.

Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period within which the
option may be exercised, to be notified by the Directors to each
Eligible Person who accepts an offer in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme, provided that it shall commerce on a
date not be more than ten years from the date of grant.

North Mining Shares Company Limited Annual Report 2017
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Acceptance of offer

The Eligible Person must accept any such offer notified to him
or her within ten (10) business days from the offer date, failing
which it shall be deemed to have been rejected. Upon acceptance
of the offer, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company as
consideration for the grant.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price for the shares under the Share Option
Scheme shall be a price determined by the Board at its absolute
discretion and notified to an Eligible Person but shall not be less
than the highest of:

0] the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations shest on the offer date;

(i)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five (5) business
days immediately preceding the offer date; and

(i) the nominal value of a Share.

The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme became effective on 25 May 2011 and
will remain in force for a period of 10 years from that date.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors or the chief executive
of the Company, or any of their respective associates, had any interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)), as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the
SFO, or as notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN

SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, according to the register kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, and so far as was known to the
Directors or chief executive of the Company, the following persons had, or
was deemed or taken to have, an interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company:

Long position:

Ordinary Shares of HK$0.016 each of the Company

RAE:
A2 E 8 R0.01678 T HE B R

FERRZRHERS

RZB—tF+ZA=+—H REFARFER
Er B GRIIEIBIRFE 2 E LM AR
BEERARABRITHRABRE  FTHALR
AR B SARRE AR 1) P R A SR AR R AR (R B

BHERAR

Approximate
percentage

Number of interest in the

shares/ issued voting

underlying shares of the

Name of shareholders Capacity shares held Company

RN

2817

i 4% SRR AR

mERG BRI

BRRES AR 514 HERGEE Bk

Qian Yong Wei (“Mr. Qian”) (Note 1) Beneficial owner 11,500,000 0.05%
gokfE ([#EE]) (M) EnlEB A

Held by controlled corporation 3,778,308,552 17.58%

HREEH RS

3,789,808,552 17.63%

Xu Zhe Cheng (‘Ms. Xu”) (Note 2) Held by spouse 3,789,808,552 17.63%
AR ([Frat]) (MEk2) EEE L ESR ]

China Wan Tai Group Limited Beneficial owner 48,500,000 0.23%
(“China Wan Tai") (Note 3) EmBEEA

FREEREEARAF ([FEEZR]) (M33) Held by controlled corporation 3,729,808,552 17.35%

HREEHARRE
3,778,308,552 17.58%
Universal Union Limited (“Universal Union”) Beneficial owner 3,729,808,552 17.35%

Universal Union Limited ([ Universal Union | )

BEEBEEA
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Approximate
percentage

Number of interest in the
shares/ issued voting
underlying shares of the
Name of shareholders Capacity shares held Company
EARAT
2T
Mt 3R AR 17
mERG, EEBA
BRE®SEEB 4 HERGEE Aok
China Huarong Asset Management Company Held by controlled corporations 4,888,000,000 22.74%
Limited (“China Huarong Asset”) (Note 4)
PHEREETERNHBR AT HEEHAFFE
(IHEZEEE]) (MiF4)
Huarong Real Estate Company Limited Held by controlled corporations 4,888,000,000 22.74%
(“Huarong Real Estate”) (Note 4)
ERMEXBREETAR([EREZE]) HEEH QRS
(Bi3E4)
China Huarong International Holdings Limited Held by controlled corporations 4,888,000,000 22.74%
(“China Huarong International”) (Note 4)
Fh B 2 R B R R AR A PR A B EE gt NS 2]
(TR EZERER]) (KiFEd)
Oceanic Merchant Limited (“Oceanic”) (Note 4) Person having a security interest 1,870,000,000 8.70%
in shares
Oceanic Merchant Limited ([Oceanic J) (FiiE4) ERDFIFHEREEZHAL
Driven Innovation Limited (“Driven”) (Note 4) Held by controlled corporation 3,018,000,000 14.04%
Driven Innovation Limited ([Driven |) (Ff5£4) MEEGIAFRFE
Zhong Ling (“Mr. Zhong”) (Note 5) Held by controlled corporation 3,018,000,000 14.04%
$EE ([4E5e4E]) (BizEs) EE NS 2]
China Gem Group Limited (“China Gem Group”) Held by controlled corporation 3,018,000,000 14.04%

(Note 5)
FREAEEEERAR ([FEAPAEE])
(FF3E5)

R NEIES e ]
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Approximate

percentage
Number of interest in the
shares/ issued voting
underlying shares of the
Name of shareholders Capacity shares held Company
EARAT
21T
Mt 3R R 17
mERG, EEBA
BRE®SE LB 54 HERGEE Aok
China Gem Investment Management Limited Held by controlled corporation 3,018,000,000 14.04%
(“China Gem Investment”) (Note 5)
China Gem Investment Management Limited AXERIAREE
([China Gem Investment | ) (Ff#E5)
China Gem Fund IX L.P (“China Gem Fund”) Beneficial owner 3,018,000,000 14.04%
(Note 4)
China Gem Fund IX L.P ([ China Gem Fund | ) EmlEA A
(BE4)
Gu Jie (“Mr. Gu”) (Note 6) Beneficial owner 1,876,580,000 8.73%
FE ([EEE]) (Hi6) BB A
Shanghai Mint Investment Advisory Company Held by controlled corporation 1,324,929,577 6.16%
Limited (Note 7)
FERBKREXRABR AR (MFE7) BEEHAFFE
Mint International Group Limited (Note 7) Held by controlled corporation 1,324,929,577 6.16%
EMBEREEFR AR (KME7) REEHRARFE
Pleasant Journey Global Limited (Note 7) Beneficial owner 1,324,929,577 6.16%

Pleasant Journey Global Limited ( Ff3¥7)

BEmEAA
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Convertible Bond issued by the Company: BRTBRBTANRRES:
Approximate
percentage
Conversion Outstanding interest in the
price per as at the Latest Number of Company as at
Name of shareholders Date of issue Conversion period share  Practicable Date  underlying shares 31 December 2017
AT
RZZ-tf
RE# TZA=t+-H
BR qTRE RERS ERNEL
RR£® BTRH %48 %3 KRBT #B BOl
Sfund International Investment 29 December 2016 29 December 2016 to 0.15 1,666,666,606 1,666,666,606 7.75%
Fund Management Limited 28 December 2018
(“Sfund”) (Note 8)
EMEERRERE ERE ZE-F
ERERARAA +-A=tAR +-A=thH
(TBMES]) (Hizts) E2R-N\E
TZAZtAR
Notes: MI5E
1. Mr. Qian personally held 11,500,000 shares in the Company, and held 95% 1. $5CAEARA11,500,0000 A 2 Rl i) K F5HE
interest in China Wan Tai. China Wan Tai held 100% interest in Universal B 2R 95% 1 7 © F1 B & 245 B Universal Union
Union. Universal Union held 3,729,808,552 shares in the Company. 100%7# 23 » Universal Union# % .3,729,808,562f%
KRB ©
2. Ms. Xu is the spouse of Mr. Qian. The interest of Mr. Qian was deemed to be 2. TRt RABEEZRMB BAEZERWR AT
Ms. Xu's interest. Ttz e o
3. These shares are held by Universal Union, a wholly owned subsidiary of 3. ZERMEFRHEERZ 2 EHE R BUniversal
China Wan Tai which is in turn beneficially owned by Mr. Qian and Ms. Xu as Union#5 4 » R B &E R BIEE T 4E R 2595
to 95% and 5% respectively. B o H95% M5%E %
4. (i) Driven Innovation is the limited partner of China Gem Fund contributing 4. (i) Driven Innovation/&China Gem FundZ BR &

approximately 83.75% of the total capital commitment including its
3,018,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company to China Gem Fund. Driven
Innovation is wholly owned by China Huarong International which in turn
is owned as to 11.90% by Huarong Zhiyuan Investment & Management
Company Limited (“Huarong Zhiyuan”) and as to 88.10% by Huarong
Real Estate. Huarong Zhiyuan and Huarong Real Estate both are wholly
owned by China Huarong Asset. (i) Oceanic is wholly owned by China
Huarong International. Mr. Gu charged 1,870,000,000 of the Shares he is
interested to Oceanic on 11 December 2014. Accordingly, China Gem Fund
is interested in 3,018,000,000 Shares, Driven Innovation is deemed to be
interested in 3,018,000,000 Shares, each of China Huarong Asset, Huarong
Real Estate, China Huarong International is deemed to be interested in
4,888,000,000 Shares and Oceanic is interested in 1,870,000,000 Shares
for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

BN EERAEBELS3.75%  Eh piEEE
# T China Gem FundZ3,018,000,0008% 4 A &]
3@ A% ° Driven Innovationf F B ZE G IR 2 &
BE MPEERERAERBEREERES
REFTAR ([ERMBER])REREXSRES
11.90% 5 88.10% 5 « ERBUR M ER E %19 H
FEEMEESEHA (i) Oceanick B ZE &l
BEe2EHEa BAER _E—NE+_A+—
B 5 = % A #E 25 21,870,000,0000% f% 15 K 38 F
Oceanic ° A It ' R IEE 5 & 2 & E 0 EXVER
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5. China Gem Investment, the general partner of China Gem Fund is directly
wholly-owned by China Gem Financial Group Limited which is, in turn,
directly wholly-owned by China Gem Group which is, in turn, directly wholly-
owned by Mr. Zhong. Accordingly, each of China Gem Investment, China
Gem Financial Group Limited, China Gem Group and Mr. Zhong is deemed
to be interested in 3,018,000,000 Shares held by China Gem Fund for the
purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

6. The Company issued and allotted a total of 1,870,000,000 conversion
shares to Mr. Gu on 29 August 2014 and Mr. Gu subsequently charged
these shares to Oceanic on 11 December 2014.

7. These shares were held by Pleasant Journey Global Limited (“Pleasant
Journey”). Pleasant Journey is wholly owned by Mint International Group
Limited which is wholly owned by Shanghai Mint Investment Advisory
Company Limited (“Shanghai Mint”). Shanghai Mint is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Pleasant Journey for the purpose of Part XV
of the SFO.

8. Sfund is held as 100% by Guangzhou Huiyin Tianye Equity Investment
Fund Management Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou Huiyin”). Guangzhou Huiyin is
held as 5% by Guangzhou Industry Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd.
(“Guangzhou Industry”) and as 95% by Guangzhou Technology Financial
Innovation Investment Holdings (“Guangzhou Technology”). Guangzhou
Technology is held as 100% by Guangzhou Industry which is held as 100%
by People’s Government of Guangzhou Municipality. People’s Government
of Guangzhou Municipality is deemed to be interested in the convertible
bond held by Sfund for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and chief executive of the
Company were not aware of any persons who, as at 31 December 2017,
had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO and/or, who was, directly or indirectly, interested in 5%
or more of the nominal value of the issued share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year under review were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Director or their respective spouse or minor children,
or were any such rights exercised by them, or was the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in the
Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, any of its holding companies or fellow subsidiaries
was a party, in which a Director had a material interest, subsisted at the
end of the year under review or at any time during the year under review.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Board has the general power of determining the Directors’
remuneration, subject to the authorization of the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting each year. The remuneration
of the Directors is subject to review by the Remuneration Committee,
and their remuneration is determined with reference to the Directors’
qualifications, experience, duties, responsibilities and performance and
results of the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions during the financial year are set
out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors believe that none of the Directors and their respective
associates had an interest, directly or indirectly, in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-laws provides that each Director or other officers of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or her office or
otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the Company has maintained
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance in respect of relevant
legal actions against the Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for convertible bonds and share option scheme of the Company,
no equity linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed
during the year.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s byelaws
or the law of Bermuda.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s issued
share capital were held by members of the public as at the date of this
report.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 180 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. William Fong, Mr. Leung Kar Fai and Dato Dr. Cheng
Chak Ho. The purpose of the establishment of the audit committee
is for reviewing and supervising the financial reporting process, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group. The audit
committee has reviewed the Group’s financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

AUDITORS

Elite Partners CPA Limited (“Elite”) was appointed as auditors of the
Company in 2012, and then retired and was re-appointed at the
Company’s annual general meeting from 2012 to 2017.

Elite will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment as
auditors of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

A resolution for the re-appointment of Elite as auditors of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Yang Ying Min
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES TEERER

The Board believes that good corporate governance is crucial to improve EE&HE EECEBAHIEAREBRR R
the efficiency and performance of the Group and to safeguard the KIFURRERFEFZLAEE-

interests of the shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company had applied &HE—-ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFEE &AQF
the principles of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) setoutin  — BHEREBH AL I AR ARESF TR
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Bl ([ =881 | ) B8 14Fr 8 > 2 B A ~r B (57
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and complied with Bl |) 2 R8I - 7 & & <7 <7 BI T8 ~ B A i F <7 Bl {5
all the applicable code provisions of the Code, except the following code 3 M LA~ <7 BI g STBR )

provision:

1. Under the code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman 1.

and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Mr. Yang Ying Min (“Mr. Yang”), being the Chairman and Chief
Executive of the Company. Mr. Yang has in-depth knowledge
and considerable experience of the Group’s business who
is responsible for the overall strategic planning and general
management of the Group. The Board considers that vesting the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer in the same person
leading to consistent leadership of the Group and enabling the
Group to make and implement decisions promptly and thus
achieving the Group’s objectives efficiently and effectively in
response to the changing environment.

The Board shall nevertheless review the structure from time to
time and shall consider the appropriate adjustment should suitable
circumstance arise.

2. Under the code provision A.5.1 of the Code, company should 2.

establish a nomination committee which is chaired by the chairman
of the board or an independent nonexecutive director and
comprises a majority of independent non-executive directors.
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However, the Board considers that the setting up of such a
nomination committee may not be necessary at the current scale
of the Board and the Company. The Board is responsible for
considering and approving the appointment of its members and
making recommendations to shareholders on directors standing
for re-election, providing sufficient biographical details of directors
to enable shareholders to make an informed decision on the re-
election, and where necessary, nominate and appoint directors to fill
casual vacancies.

The Company has set out a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) for
achieving diversity on board of directors of the Company. The Policy
provide a sustainable and balanced development in Company’s
strategic objectives. The Board review the Policy annually and
ensure the effectiveness of the Policy.

Under the code provision A.6.7 of the Code, independent non-
executive directors should, inter alia, attend general meetings.

Due to personal and other important engagement at the relevant
time, Mr. Leung Kar Fai and Dato Dr. Cheng Chak Ho were absent
from the 2017 annual general meeting of the Company.

The Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to
ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than the Code.

The Company will periodically review and improve its corporate

governance practices with reference to the latest development of

corporate governance.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company had adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors regarding
any non-compliance with the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2017, and they have all confirmed that they had fully complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code.

BOARD MEETING

The principal roles of the Board are to oversee the strategic development,
to determine the objectives, strategies and policies of the Group, to
monitor and control the financial performance and to ensure effective
internal controls and risk management. Implementation of strategies and
day-to-day operations are delegated to the management.

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and timely
information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly. Schedules for
annual meeting and draft agenda of each meeting is sent to all Directors in
advance. Notice of at least 14 days is given for a regular Board meeting.
For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally
given. Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are dispatched to all Directors at least three days before each
regular Board meeting to ensure that the Directors have sufficient time
to review the related documents and be adequately prepared for the
meeting.

Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings, which record in
sufficient detail the matters considered and decisions reached, are kept
by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable
time on reasonable notice by any Director. The Company’s Bye-laws
contains provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to
be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which
such Directors or any of their associates have a material interest.
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The following table shows the attendance of each individual member of

TRETEFENEZEFELZREZEMNKEH
H

the Board and the respective Board Committees at the Board and the FERHE _ZE—+F+ _-_A=+—HBItFELETT
respective Board Committees meetings and general meeting held during Y EZCe@EREEECLEee2RERS
the year ended 31 December 2017: ZEDEE
Corporate Financial
Audit Remuneration  Governance Reporting
Board Committee ~ Committee =~ Committee =~ Committee General
Name of Directors meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
ERZEE FHZEEE TEER BHRE
B4 EzggE = &% ZEgg ZEBY BRAE
Executive Directors HTES
Yang Ying Ming BER 4/4 n/a T™EH n/a TEA n/a T n/a T 11
Qian Yi Dong #—R 4/4 n/a NERA 212 212 2/2 1/1
Zhang Jia Kun KRR 4/4 n/a i n/a i 2/2 2/2 0/1
Li Li Juan (Note 1) BB (M) 4/4 n/a TiE n/a Nid n/a & A n/a B 0/1
Independent Non-executive
Directors BYFHTES
William Fong T &R 4/4 2/2 2/2 n/a NEA 2/2 1/1
Leung Kar Fai RERE 4/4 2/2 2/2 n/a NE A n/a N F 0/1
Cheng Chak Ho BEx 4/4 2/2 2/2 22 nalER 0/1

Note 1: Due to other work commitment, Ms. Li Li Juan resigned from her position
as an executive Director of the Company on 21 June 2017.

Any Director may request independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon reasonable request
being made to the Board.

During the financial year of 2017, the Board had at all times at least three
independent non-executive directors and at least one of independent
non-executive directors have appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise. The Company
has appointed independent non-executive directors representing at least
one-third of the board.
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The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance for the
Directors for indemnifying their liabilities arising out of corporate activities.
The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of their independency pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

Director’s Continuous Professional Development

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

During the year, all Executive Directors of the Company namely, Yang Ying
Min, Qian Yi Dong and Zhang Jia Kun received briefings and updates
on the Group’s business, operations, risk management and corporate
governance matters. Materials on new or changes to rules and regulations
applicable to the Group were provided to them. According to the training
records maintained by the Company, Independent Non-executive
Directors namely Wiliam Fong, Leung Kar Fai and Cheng Chak Ho also
attended regulatory update sessions and seminars on relevant topics.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

All the non-executive Directors of the Company were appointed for an
initial term of one year and every Director (including those appointed for a
specific term) is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board set up various board committees responsible for various
aspect of business of the Company.

Remuneration Committees

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was established in May
2006. The members of the Remuneration Committee during the financial
year of 2017 are:

Mr. Leung Kar Fai (Chairman)
Dato Dr. Cheng Chak Ho

Mr. Qian Yi Dong

Mr. William Fong

The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include setting
remuneration policy of the Group and fixing remuneration packages of the
Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Bye-laws. Details
of the remuneration paid to the respective Directors are set out in note
10 to the financial statements. No Directors can determine their own
remuneration packages. The Remuneration Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties. The Remuneration Committee
has adopted terms of reference which are aligned with the Code. The
chairman of the Remuneration Committee will report their findings and
recommendations to the Board for consideration and approval. The
Remuneration Committee will meet at least once a year to discharge its
responsibilities in accordance with its terms of reference.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Remuneration Committee
held two meetings, the work performed included the followings:

a. discussing the policy for the remuneration of the Directors;
b. reviewing remuneration packages of the Directors;

C. making recommendations to the Board on remuneration of the
Non-Executive Directors; and

d. proposed annual remuneration package of newly appointed
Directors to the Board.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all Independent Non-executive Directors
of the Company, they are as follows:

Mr. William Fong (Chairman)
Dato Dr. Cheng Chak Ho
Mr. Leung Kar Fai

The Audit Committee will meet no less than twice a year to review all
business affairs managed by the Executive directors and to review
the interim and annual financial statements of the Group before their
submission to the Board for approval and to review the effectiveness
of the financial reporting system, risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. The Audit Committee has adopted terms of
reference which are aligned with the Code. A copy of the terms of
reference of the Audit Committee has been posted on the Company’s
website.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee met on
two occasions with the presence of external auditors and discharged its
responsibilities in its review of the interim and annual results. The work
performed by the Audit Committee for the year ended 31 December 2017
included reviews of the following:

a. the directors’ report and the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2016 of the Group, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

b. the consolidated financial statements for the six months ended 30
June 2017 of the Group, with a recommendation to the Board for
approval;

C. the audit fees for the year ended 31 December 2017 proposed
by the external auditors, with a recommendation to the Board for
approval;

d. the new accounting policies and practices adopted by the Group;

e. the compliance status of the Group with the applicable regulatory
and other legal requirements;

f. the Group’s investment policy and the adequacy of provision made
for diminution in value for the Group’s assets and investments; and

g. the risk management and internal control systems of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Committee

In order to further strengthen the Company’s corporate governance, the
Company established the Corporate Governance Committees on 12
January 2008:

The members of the Corporate Governance Committee during the
financial year of 2017 are as follows:

Mr. Qian Yi Dong (Chairman)
Dato Dr. Cheng Chak Ho
Mr. Zhang Jia Kun

The major responsibilities of the Corporate Governance Committee are to
oversee the Company’s corporate governance matters and to ensure that
the Company has complied with the Code. The Corporate Governance
Committee had reviewed the corporate governance report of the
Company and confirmed that the Company had complied with the Code
of the Listing Rules throughout the year except some deviations from the
Code mentioned in the section headed “Corporate Governance Practice”
of this report.

Financial Reporting Committee

The Board, supported by the accounts department, is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and the Group.
The Company has also set up a Financial Reporting Committee which
major responsibility is to oversee the preparation of financial statements
of each financial period, which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the Group’s results and cash flow for that
year. The Financial Reporting Committee is also responsible to ensure the
compliance by the Group of disclosure requirements under the Listing
Rules in a timely manner.

The members of the Financial Reporting Committee during the financial
year of 2017 are as follows:

Mr. Qian Yi Dong (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Jia Kun
Mr. William Fong
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Financial Reporting
Committee had reviewed the audited financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the unaudited financial
statements of Group for the six months ended 30 June 2017. They
also confirmed the preparations of the audited and unaudited financial
statements of the Group were in compliance with the disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules.

Nomination Function

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the nomination duties
including:

a. reviewing the structure, size and diversity (including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service) of the Board on
a regular basis (“Board Diversity Policy”);

b. formulating and adjusting the Board Diversity Policy and reviewing
the measurable objectives for implementing diversity on the Board
from time to time;

C. reviewing the candidates’ qualification and competence;

d. assessing the independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors; and

e. making decision on appointment of Directors.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted the board diversity policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) in accordance with the requirement set out in the Code. Such
policy aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
Accordingly, all Board appointments shall be based on meritocracy, and
candidates shall be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates
shall be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not
limited to, gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision shall be based on merit and contribution could the selected
candidates could bring to the Board. The Board, from time to time,
oversees the implementation of the policy, and reviews, as appropriate,
the policy to ensure the effectiveness of the policy and continues to give
adequate consideration to these measurable objectives when making
recommendations of candidates for appointment to the Board.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

An amount of approximately HK$1,080,000 (2016: HK$900,000) was
charged to the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017 for the auditing services provided by Elite
Partners CPA Limited. There was no non-audit service assignment
provided by Elite Partners CPA Limited during the year (2016: Nil).

SHAREHOLDER’S RIGHTS

Convening a Special General Meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to the Bye-law 58 of the Company, a special general meeting
may be convened by the Board upon requisition by any shareholder
holding not less than one-tenth of the issued share capital of the
Company and the securities being held carrying the right of voting at any
general meetings of the Company. The shareholder shall make a written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company at
the head office or principal place of business in Hong Kong, specifying
the shareholding information of the shareholder, his/her contact details
and the proposal regarding any specified transaction/business and its
supporting documents.
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The Board shall arrange to hold such general meeting within two (2)
months after the receipt of such written requisition. The Company shall
serve requisite notice of the general meeting, including the time, place of
meeting and particulars of resolutions to be considered at the meeting
and the general nature of the business. If within twenty-one (21) days
of the receipt of such written requisition, the Board fails to proceed
to convene such special general meeting, the shareholder shall do so
pursuant to the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act of
Bermuda.

The procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns in writing to the
Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary at the Principal
Place of Business and the Company Secretary shall then forward the
same to the appropriate executives of the Company or members in the
Board for further handling.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary of the Company at the head office or principal place
of business in Hong Kong, specifying the shareholding information of
the shareholder, his/her contact details and the proposal he/she intends
to put forward at general meeting regarding any specified transaction/
business and its supporting documents.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring that
the Board procedures are followed and the Board activities are efficiently
and effectively conducted. She is also responsible for ensuring that the
Board is fully appraised of the relevant legislative, regulatory and corporate
governance developments relating to the Group and facilitating the
induction and professional development of directors.

During the year under review, the company secretary has attended
relevant professional seminars to update her skills and knowledge. She
met the training requirement set out in Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company follows a policy of disclosing relevant information to
shareholders in a timely manner. The Directors meet and communicate
with shareholders at the AGM of the Company. The Chairman proposes
separate resolutions for each issue to be considered and put each
proposed resolution to the vote by way of a poll. Voting results are posted
on the Company’s website on the day of AGM.

Our corporate website which contains corporate information, corporate
governance practice, interim and annual reports, announcements and
circulars issued by the Company enables the Company’s shareholders to
have timely and updated information of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems for the Group to
safeguard investments of the Shareholders and assets of the Group at all
times.

The Board will conduct regular review regarding internal control and
risk management systems of the Group. During the year ended 31
December 2017, the Audit Committee reviewed and discussed with the
Group’s internal audit team and the senior management on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Company’s internal control systems including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management. The
Audit Committee further made recommendations to the Board to ensure
reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable statutory
accounting and reporting requirements, legal and regulatory requirements,
internal rules and procedures approved by the Board, to identify and
manage potential risks of the Group. Besides, the Audit Committee and
the Board will also perform regular review on the Group’s performance
and internal control system in order to ensure effective measures are in
place to protect material assets and identify business risks of the Group.
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TRERBME

In respect of the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board considered
the internal control and risk management system effective and adequate.
No significant areas of concern that might affect shareholders were
identified during the relevant period.

On behalf of the Board

Yang Ying Min
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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ABOUT THIS REPORT
PRINCIPLE AND SCOPE OF THE REPORT

This is the annual Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the
“ESG Report”) of North Mining Shares Company Limited (“North Mining”
or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), which was
prepared based on the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide (the “ESG Guide”) in the Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report included the business
operations of the Group in both Hong Kong and China during the
reporting period for the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Reporting
Period”) relating to the overall performance, risks, strategies, measures
and commitments of four aspects: the quality of working environment,
environmental protection, operating practices and community
participation.

During the Reporting Period, the principal activities of the Group are
(i) mining operations — exploitation, exploration and trading of mineral
resources; and (i) property management operations; (i) chemical trading
operations and; (iv) security technologies operations. These activities are
mainly operated in mainland China. The Hong Kong office is primarily
responsible for the compliance matters in related to the listing of the
Company on the main board (the “Main Board”) of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Therefore, after conducting
important tests, the Group decided to include all of its main subsidiaries
which operate the above business in mainland China and the Hong Kong
office in this ESG Report. All the information was extracted from formal
documents or statistics reports of the Company.

For details of our corporate governance, please refer to our report on
corporate governance on Page 31 to Page 43 of this annual report.
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Overall approaches and policies

North Mining has been persisting in creating economic benefits,
promoting business development, and performing its corporate social
responsibility to strike a balance between all parties, while advocating
corporate integrity in its pursuit of sustainable development.

For our sustainable development, we are committed to:

> Ensuring the compliance with laws, regulations and standards
applicable to our operations in an ethical and transparent manner

> Maintaining our stable growth to become a leading mining company
with constant and consistent revenue and returns by ensuring
constant and healthy growth in production capacity and further
expanding our product mix

> Maintaining a long-term and sustainable relationship by listening to
the voice of the community to understand the social needs

> Establishing and maintaining open and transparent communications
with local communities and the public on matters regarding safety,
environment and community relationship

> Protecting the integrity, health, and benefits of the stakeholders
on issues such as cooperation and respect for employees,
communities and environment and be recognized for our
sustainable development.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group attaches the importance to communications with all internal
and external stakeholders to understand their concerns and needs. We
believe that listening carefully to the views of the stakeholders will help us
objectively develop a corporate social responsibility policy that is effective
and comprehensive. Therefore, we will communicate with stakeholders
through different channels in our daily operations.

The Group wishes to inform stakeholders of the Group’s other
performances in addition to the financial performance and business
operations in this report. Should any stakeholder have any questions
or comments regarding the contents of this ESG Report, he or she is
welcome to share his or her valuable comments with the Group in the
following ways:

Address: Rooms 1505-07, 15/F, Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2520 8433

Fax: (852) 2537 4678

Email: info@northmining.com.hk
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ENVIRONMENTAL REPORT
2017 Environment Data Summary

Environment  Direct emission and Electric energy consumption KWh 164,869
consumption Water consumption Surface water tonne 3,338
Municipal water supply ~ tonne 743
Sewage discharge tonne 223
Diesel oil used for vehicles

and transport litre 14,296

Discarded tires from seff-owned
vehicle fleet tonne 0.24
Other indirect emission  Electric energy consumption KWh 27,620
or consumption Paper consumption tonne 0.08
General solid wastes at the office tonne 0.09
Non-inert construction waste tonne 1
Other wastes tonne 1

Environmental Protection

North Mining has been committed to protecting the environment, thus a
safety environment management committee has been established and a
specialist is assigned to monitor safety issue and impacts on environment
during the production process of the Company. During our course
of business, including mining, processing, and production and other
processes at mines, as well as daily office back-up, we adopt relevant
prevention and protection measures on air, water, waste and other
aspects to mitigate the impacts on natural environment in meeting the
Implementation Standard for Environmental Impact Assessment.

We ensure the compliance with the relevant national regulations
and prepare internal guidelines and codes in accordance with these
regulations. Such regulations and internal guidelines and codes include
but not limited to:

° “Letter of Luonan County Environmental Protection Bureau on
Implementation Standards for Environmental Impact Assessment
on the Potassium Feldspar Pilot Project of Shaanxi Dagin
Potassium Industry Limited” ( BREEARZF=EHZEAFRAF]) "~ Luo Huan
Han 2013 No.34

o “Letter on Implementation Standards for Environmental Impact
Assessment on the Mining Project of 1.2 million Tons Per Annum of
Changling Potash Mine of Luonan Dagin Potassium Mining Limited*
OREBEAFIEARAF) - Luo Huan Han 2016 No.93
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Air pollution impacts on environment:

Environmental air quality shall be subject to the secondary standard
under the “Air Quality in a Specific Environment” (GB3095 — 2012)
Dust and yard dust shall be subject to the secondary standard and
unorganized emission limits under the “Comprehensive Air Pollutant
Emission Standards” (GB16297-1996)

Coal-fired boiler exhaust gas:
Subject to the Period Il Standards of Second Zone under the “Emission
Standards of Air Pollutants for Boilers” (GB13271-2001)

Cooking fume
Subject to relevant standards under the “Emission Standard of Cooking
Fume” (GB18483-2001)

During the Reporting Period, no violation of environmental laws and
regulations regarding emission of exhaust air and greenhouse gas,
discharge into water and land, as well as hazardous and non-hazardous
pollutants that have significant impacts on the Group were found.

Emission Management

In consideration of inevitable and negative impacts of our mining
activities on the ecological structure of land, the Group implements
a number of measures to closely monitor various processes.
Environmental protection and rehabilitation at the mines of the
Group are in compliance with the“EIA Report” and the “Soil and
Water Conservation Plan”. By starting with the planning and design
according to the internal “Mine Design”, we carry out appropriate
planning for mining processes with reference to the land, climate,
air quality and other environmental conditions at mining areas. In
accordance with the design requirements and open-air mining area
protection design, our employees are required to commence work
to minimize the impacts of production and work on environment.

We have unified processes in disposing tailings and waste rocks
for the completed slag-stacking dam to prevent environmental
destruction. Besides managing wastes disposal at production site,
we have also adopted measures in reducing wastes. As potassium
feldspar ores are large in body and evenly stratified, we adopt the
mine blasting technique to control the distribution of shot holes and
the use of explosives to improve mining efficiency and ore recovery.
We achieved no emission, discharge and disposal of “three wastes”
(i.e. waste water, waste gas and solid waste) by recycling and
reuse.
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To further enhance our mine environmental management, in
addition to regular inspections by the local government on water
quality, air quality and noise surrounding our mine, we will appoint
intermediaries to check our mining and production activities in
improving our environmental protection measures based on their
recommendations.

In respect of the emission control of chemical trading operations,
Anhui Tongxi has formulated and executed relevant environmental
management procedures in accordance with the laws and
regulations of Environmental Protection Law of People’s Republic
of China, Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environment Pollution Caused by Solid Wastes as
well as Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China,
ensuring the emission generated during course of the business
(including chemical production, storage, transportation and sales
etc.) would not exceed the national limit.

Anhui Tongxi has obtained the “pollutant discharge permit” issued
by local environmental protection bureau, all discharged waste
water has been processed by sewage treatment equipment. Anhui
Tongxi has also formulated a guideline for waste classification,
recycling and disposal. Hazardous waste must be processed by
those professional waste recycling companies with qualification
certificates issued by related environmental safety and health
department.

Use of Resources

Effective resources utilization is our aim. We minimize loss during
production process and take full use of resources by recycling
and reuse. During the crushing process, we break the rocks into a
suitable size to reduce loss. We will also reselect from the slag to
fully use the resources.

Besides our mine and chemical environmental management, we
also implement numerous measures to save energy and reduce
emissions at the office. Use of all office equipment is subject to the
rules of “turning equipment on when needed, keeping equipment
on standby when idle, and turning equipment off when leaving the
office”. Certain specific measures include:

lllumination of lighting equipment is controlled by a timer
based on summers and winters;
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ii. Subject to the principle of water conservation, we strictly
prohibit our employees from wasting water by regulating the
consumption; and

i, To create a paperless office environment, we also try and
encourage the use of e-mail and other electronic documents,
while requiring internal documents to be printed on both
sides, as well as recycling waste paper.

The Environment and Natural Resources

In view of mitigating the effects on the environment and natural
resources caused by the Company, we have strictly followed the
Implementation Standard for Environmental Impact Assessment
in running our production and business activities via building
slag fields to lessen dust pollution; and implementing recyclable
production and water reuse to lessen water pollution.

Besides reducing the impact of our work on the land ecology, we
are also actively engaged in greening and reclamation. Mineral
vegetation restoration is indispensable for mining construction. To
prevent unnecessary vegetation removal, we clearly demarcate
the vegetation area to be removed. With our mine construction
currently being at the primary stage, it is unsuitable for any
meaningful greening project. However, we will design the greening
projects in detail based on the guidelines set out in “EIA Report”
and “Soil and Water Conservation Plan” and also the construction
progress of the mine. Upon completion of production at mining
area, we will gradually restore the ecological environment of the
mining area by carrying out environmental protection and resuming
management as planned.
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SOCIAL ISSUES REPORT HEEERE

2017 Employee Data Summary 0175 EEHERE

Employee Total employees Headcount 896 {EE BTHEH AE 896
By gender Headcount 2 Bl AEL
- Male 684 — 5% 684
- Female 212 — 212
By rank Percentage R AR Bkt
— Administration Staff 39.0% —1TBAE 39.0%
— Other staff 61.0% —HMET 61.0%
By age Percentage RER ERalsd
— Under 30 12.0% =305 AT 12.0%
- 30 to 50 68.0% —30-50%% 68.0%
— Over 50 20.0% —508% A £ 20.0%
Employee turnover rate EBIRKLE
By gender Percentage &5l B
— Male 3.0% — 5 3.0%
- Female 0.8% — 0.8%
By age RER
- Under 30 Percentage 0.3% —30mA T Bk 0.3%
-30to 50 2.7% —30-50%% 2.7%
— Over 50 0.8% —505% A | 0.8%
Work-related fatalities Headcount 0 I%T A 0
Lost days due to Days 1,024 IBEX H 1,024
work injury BIEEE
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

1.

Employment and Labour Standards
Employment Policy

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has 896 staff. The Group is
committed to providing a good and safe working environment for its
employees. On the basis of the Labor Law of the People’s Republic
of China, Employment Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China, Labor Standards Act and also industry practices, we have
formulated relevant employment and labour practices including
recruitment and dismissal, remuneration and promotion, working
hours, holidays, equal opportunities, diversity and other treatment
packages, as well as benefits policies and guidelines to ensure all
of our employees are treated equally. All employees have access
to the relevant policies and provisions which clarify their rights and
responsibilities.

To attract and retain employees, the Group has developed a
competitive remuneration and benefits system, including basic
remuneration, employee benefits and interests such as mandatory
provident fund, insurance, annual leave, sick leave, various
allowances and severance payment. We also arrange for shift
leave with compensation for staff who work overtime according to
their work nature, and pay remuneration for employees who work
reasonably overtime. The Group also offers additional remuneration
and benefits such as employee assessment bonuses with reference
to factors such as employee performance, financial performance
and market conditions. For long service staff, we will provide length
of service awards to thank for their contribution to the Company
over the years.

Based on the nature of our business, there will be more outsourcing
construction workers and equipment installation personnel during
the construction of our mines. For external personnel, the Company
will pay contract payment by installment, if they are not paid on
time, we will urge our cooperative unit first, failure to pay, we will
pay them with the total project payments after negotiation with the
other two parties.
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Employee Communications

We advocate open communication and encourage employees of
different positions and posts to express their views through different
channels, including communicating with the management directly or
through corporate activities. Corporate culture propaganda will be
conducted by staff upon their entry to understand our development
process and vision, and the realization of own value. We also
organize festive meals, tours and other activities to recognize their
hard work, adjust the work fatigue and enhance team cohesion.

During the Reporting Period, the Group have not been involved
in any breach of laws and regulations relating to employment that
have a significant impact on the Group.

Labour Standards

The Group strictly complies with the Employment Ordinance of
Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong and the Regulation on
Labour Security Supervision of the State Council of the People’s
Republic of China. All recruitment procedures and promotions are
strictly supervised in accordance with the Group’s human resources
management system. In addition to its capacity as a core mining
and processing enterprise with more male staff, the Group has no
gender requirements for staff in our recruitment due to the nature of
our work.

The Group has strict rules on the conduct of all our employees,
including directors and management, to protect employees from
any form of harassment and bullying and ensure employees are
treated equally. We are committed to protecting human rights,
prohibiting the employment of forced labour and child labour in
business operations, and ensuring that all employees are not
discriminated against or deprived of any treatment due to gender,
race background, religion, age, marriage and family status, disability
or any other cause.
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Employee Health and Safety
Safety First

The ore mining business involves a certain degree of danger.
In view of this, the Group put providing employees with a safe
working environment first. We have developed comprehensive work
health and safety guidelines, including “safety training system”,
“safety regular meeting system”, “safety inspection system” and
“safety hazard investigation system”, with reference to industry
practice and regulatory requirements, and strictly supervise and
implement the same, to achieve safe operation. Safety committee
has been set up to deal with and respond to emergencies. The
safety committee will conduct safety inspection of the working
environment on a regular basis (including semi-annual safety
assessment) and formulate safety guidelines according to the
“Safety Assessment Report” prepared by them.

Mine environment usually involves higher risk. As such, we
put great emphasis on employees’ occupational health and
safety awareness. We enhance safety education and provide
relevant safety training and knowledge for employees, including
equipping with fire prevention equipment, watching videos
about fire prevention knowledge and first aid as well as electrical
safety knowledge. We arrange a 3-day safety training for safety
management staff bi-annually under the organisation of the
government. Training contents are prepared uniformly by safety
supervision units at municipal level according to relevant national
laws and regulations requirements. Upon the completion of
training, we will conduct a related examination. Such training will
also provide the entire safety management system with marked
enhancement.

In addition, the Company requires provision of relevant qualification
certificates for specific operations and equipment, such as
qualification certificate for specific electrician, specific equipment
operation permit for loader drivers and excavator drivers.
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Physical and Mental Health

We also organize various types of activities for our employees
to enhance the interaction between them, promote employees’
physical and mental development, maintain the balance of work
and life, and enhance their sense of belonging.

During the Reporting Period, there was no major safety incident
and work-related injury. There was also no breach of laws and
regulations relating to safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards that have significant impacts
on the Group.

Development and Training

We are convinced that employee development is critical to
sustainable development of our business. The Group continues to
promote culture learning and encourages employees to actively
equip themselves with knowledge. We provide our staff with
professional knowledge through various trainings and development
programs to improve their quality and skills and help them grow.
All new recruits will be offered trainings to become familiar with the
Company’s culture, business and operations.

The Group determines the remuneration and benefits of employees
based on the nature of their work, qualifications, work performance
and market conditions after assessment. We encourage internal
promotion and provide a fair promotion platform, adequate on-the-
job and professional training as well as promotion opportunities
for employees. The Group attaches importance to the views of
employees and encourages them to discuss their work promotion
and career development objectives with the management. Training
and development plans include but not limited to:

Safety training of mine operations

Professional knowledge such as mining

Relevant regulation seminars/guideline

Knowledge relating to listing rules and corporate governance

YV V V V
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OPERATING PRACTICES

4.

Supply Chain Management

The Group values integrity and holds the same ethical standards
for suppliers and partners. We have a strict “Company Contract
Management System” to regulate all procurement activities. When
choosing a supplier, we consider the cost, product quality and
track record as the main consideration, and only choose suppliers
with good business record and without serious violation or violation
of business ethics. The products and services supplied to us by
suppliers are in accordance with our strict procurement tender
procedures and in line with our requirements. Suppliers are strictly
prohibited to obtain supply contracts through any form of interest
transfer.

The Group will grant the supplier fair and reasonable conditions
when receiving goods from the supplier and will not exploit the
supplier in any way. Meanwhile, the Group will evaluate the
products provided by the supplier, check whether the supplier has
fulfilled the product liability and report relevant information in time
to ensure that its products meet the requirements of the Group or
replace the suppliers.

Product Responsibility

We perform extremely stringent quality control on our products
and services to ensure the products meet the specifications and
requirements of our customers. We will also be actively aware of the
needs of our customers via on-site sales and promotion; customers
will also be invited to visit our Company for demonstration of our
products and philosophy. We review the service process through
customer feedback, and promptly deal with and investigate
customer complaints, thereby improving customer service.

Protect Privacy and Intellectual Property

We respect the privacy and intellectual property of our customer
and operate in compliance with relevant requirements under
Intellectual Property and Patent Law. We require employees to
properly handle customer’s business sensitive information and
will not resell for profit for the avoidance of incurring losses for
our customers. During the Reporting Period, the Group did not
suffer from customer losses due to customer privacy leaks or
other service problems, nor did it receive any complaints and
compensation requests from customers due to poor service quality.
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We also strive to protect our own intellectual property. The Group
has commenced product research and development on human
face recognition technology, intellectual image analytical technology
and application during the reporting period. Therefore, relevant
subsidiaries have strictly performed the internal guideline to require
their staff handling those related technology information properly
and prohibit any individual (such as staff, clients and business
partners) who is accessible to those information benefited from
transferring or selling related technology information.

Promotion and Labelling

To attract customer and improve sales, we will carry out marketing
and promotional campaigns for our products. These campaigns
comply with the Advertisement Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Interim Measures for the Administration of Internet
Advertisement and other applicable laws and regulations governing
advertising and labelling enacted by the relevant government
authorities. We stand by the principle of law-abiding to operate our
production and business.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with all of
the relevant laws and regulations in related to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters of products and services
provided that have significant impacts on the Group.

Anti-corruption

The Group has always maintained a “good faith” business, striving
for create a clean working atmosphere, requiring directors and
all employees to strictly comply with the relevant legal norms and
ethical standards. We have formulated and strictly exercised a
series of anti-corruption measures according to the Criminal Law of
the People’s Republic of China, Anti-Money Laundering Law of the
People’s Republic of China and other national laws and regulations.
The Group has an internal audit team and an audit committee and
appoints external lawyers and auditors to comply with the corporate
governance and disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange for listed companies. We will regularly review the internal
governance mechanism to improve our governance level.
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For the day-to-day business operations, the Group will not allow
any corruption and fraud. All relevant provisions on anti-corruption,
anti bribery and conflicts of interest have been set out in the
Code of Conduct for Employees to ensure that employees are in
compliance with the law at work. The Group provides employees
with information on anti-corruption on a regularly basis to enhance
their awareness of corruption and develop good professional
conduct. If any corruption or fraud is found, it may be reported by
any persons through our open internal mailbox. We will conduct
investigation promptly and report the same to the management and
relevant law enforcement departments.

The board of directors plays a vital role in anti-corruption and can
challenge all the operating and management conduct of the Group.
In the financial aspect, the directors are under absolute supervision
to prevent the occurrence of various disciplinary actions. The
management prevents the occurrence of corruption in accordance
with the corporate process based on the authority given by the
board of directors.

During the Reporting Period, we have not noticed any breach
of laws against corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering that have significant impacts on the Group.

COMMUNITY

7.

Community Investment

The Group attaches importance to building a harmonious
corporate and community relationship with its communities through
active participation in the activities of its communities. We held
discussions with the community’s main staff from time to time to
understand local community’s perception of our corporate. We will
integrate the views of community stakeholders we acquired into
our daily operation with a view to getting on harmonious with the
community.

The Group is actively engaged in the promotion of corporate social
responsibility within the enterprise, organizing or participating in
appropriate community activities, enabling employees to personally
contribute to the community and enhance their community
awareness. We hope to support targeted poverty alleviation objects
through different activities, so as to improve the living, learning and
working environment of our community.
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regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, pollutant discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

EHBERRESREH N KR EHIES AEREERE
VIR A TR B M BB T A B AR AR AR R
BB R

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water
and other raw materials.

BRERER (BIFRLIR K EEMRME) O EE -

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

MEBETABRBERRABERENEAFENRK -
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Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting employees

from occupational hazards.
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Work-related fatalities

AT

Lost days due to work injury
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Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
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elite
partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the members of
North Mining Shares Company Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuada with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of North Mining
Shares Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 72 to 180, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes
to the consolidated financial statements including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
“Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

As described in note 1.3 to the consolidated financial statements,
which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of approximately
HK$181,206,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017 and, as of
that date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
approximately HK$329,089,000. These conditions indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of
this matter. In addition to the matter described in the Material Uncertainty
Related to Going Concern section, we have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

HEERER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

A BN 2 AR A R 2R R

Acquisition of business

WIEXTE

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
acquired the following subsidiaries:
REBE-_ZT—+F+-_A=+—BILFE > EEEKET
PNEALL=NSE

(@  100% equity interests in Gold Pearl Investment Limited
and its subsidiaries (‘Gold Pearl Group”) for cash
consideration of HK$430 million. Gold Pearl Group
is principally engaged in research, development and
sale of security technologies products, details of which
are set out in note 38(a) to the consolidated financial
statements. The acquisition of Gold Pearl Group was
classified as an acquisition of business under the scope
of HKFRS 3 Business Combinations.

@ AR ER(E430,000,0008 T KBS B HKIREBR A A
REMBEAR ([@EIKERE]) 2100% KK #Ewm - &8
REEFERERLERMEMZAEREE F1EE
R ERE ISR KM FES8(@) - M BB R ELERE
SREBEHBEE T WESEAREER S BRI
ESi

(b)  51% equity interests in Anhui Tongxin Chemical
Company Limited (“Anhui Tongxin”) for cash
consideration of HK$47 million. Anhui Tongxin is
principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of
chemical products (apart from dangerous chemicals),
details of which are set out in note 38(b) to the
consolidated financial statements. The acquisition
of Anhui Tongxin was classified as an acquisition
of business under the scope of HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations.

(b) VAR € (47,000,000 T WELZBRMET AR A
Al (BRI ]) 251 %R A - 2 /AL EENE
{bBEmz8EREE (ERIEBRERIN)  FEEH
RERE ISR R I 5E38(0) © PAE B I 15 3 & £ I 22 355k
¥BEEE T WRLRBRA LS BRANIEER -

Our major audit procedures to address the acquisition of
business included the following:

RZBERBRMBRS 2 ERERREFEENAT

° We examined the sales and purchase agreements
for the acquisitions and the underlying businesses
of the acquired companies to determine whether
the acquisitions were within the scope of HKFRS 3
Business Combinations;

. EHR S EYEEREIT ZEER R ZSRE QA
ZHEAER UNETKREBEBREDZEABTEBVB®RE
HRIEIREBE O 2 &EE

° We tested the purchase price allocation in which we
especially focused on the fair value of identifiable assets
and liabilities involved in the business combination;

o AIRAEBEHRBBEZHER BT AZEENEFAIS%
PREBEHESHNAENEEREB 2 A TFE:

° We discussed with management and the independent
external valuer engaged by the Company to evaluate
the valuation methodologies used by the management
and tested the main assumptions (including the
expected future cash flows, discount rates and
useful lives, where appropriate) to assess whether
the methodology and assumptions adopted were
reasonable and appropriate;
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Key audit matter

BREELER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

A BN 2 AR A0 R PR R

(c) 65% equity interests in Wealth Pioneer Group Limited
and its subsidiaries (“Wealth Pioneer Group”) for cash
consideration of HK$900 million. The principal asset
of Wealth Pioneer Group is 60% equity interests in
a Potassium Feldspar Mine in the PRC, details of
which are set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements. The acquisition of Wealth Pioneer
Group was classified as acquisition of assets through
acquisition of subsidiaries and was not within the scope
of HKFRS 3 Business Combinations.

©) PAR£ R {E900,000,000/% T Y iE & HWealth Pioneer
Group Limited & E fff 8 A 7] ([Wealth Pioneer&[&])
2 B5%M% AN HE 25 © Wealth Pioneerfs BIH) = B & & 217
R BIRR PR & A3 R A TE 2 60% AR - FHERER
RE BRI S0 c WL R E LA R ABE BRI
BWEARWEEE W NEBREBMBREELES
REBEEEZA -

We had identified acquisition of business as a key audit matter
because (i) significant management judgements were involved
in determining whether the acquisition of subsidiaries were fall
within the scope of HKFRS 3 Business Combinations; and
(i) the process for the purchase price allocation from above
business combinations was complex and involved various
management’s assumptions and judgements.
HR)EEWREXB B EABTENBRELREIRER
Bz BERSEANEEAE RN LM EBE R HE
WHEEB 2 BIZEM R E S TR E 2 RE& KA E - A EED
B EEG SN AR EREE

° We checked on a sample basis the accuracy and
reliance of the input data used;

o  HMEBHBABBZEBERAEL:

° We assessed the competency, independence and
objectivity of the independent external valuer taking into
account of their experiences and qualifications; and

J B INE(HERD 2 BE T B M R BB R E
BERMANERSGE: &

° We also assessed the adequacy of the Group’s
disclosures on the business combinations in
consolidated financial statements.

o FHE ERENSGEAMBRRIHZIEBAHEEDN
TR
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Key audit matter

HMEERER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

KB 2 B2 AR ZE R

Impairment assessment of goodwill, intangible assets, mining rights and property, plant and equipment

BE HEEEE FKEBRYE BERREZHEFE

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had goodwill
of approximately HK$69.1 million, intangible assets
of approximately HK$454.8 million, mining rights of
approximately HK$3,402.6 million and property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$626.7 million which were
mainly belongs to the Group’s cash generating unit of security
technologies operation, mining operation and chemical trading
operation (“CGUS”).

RZZE—+tHF+_HA=+—H' EEEZAEZEN
69,100,000 7T - & /2 & & #9454,800,000/% JT « £R i 4 4
3,402,600,0007# 7T K 3£ - B K 3% 49626,700,0007% 7T 7
FEBER BEEZRERMER REEBRMERER
EBzReELEN ([ZEReEEEM]) -

For the year ended 31 December 2017, no impairment loss
had been recognised for the goodwill, intangible assets,
mining rights and property, plant and equipment, details
of which are set out in note 15, 17, 18 and 21 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
REBEE_Z—+F+_A=+—BLLFE HE}ETE &
WEE BN BERREAERZREEE 54
1B D BIE RS B SRk 2 MisE15 ~ 17 ~ 18 %21 ©

We had identified the impairment assessment of goodwill,
intangible assets, mining rights and property, plant and
equipment relating to the CGUs as a key audit matter because
of its materiality to the consolidated financial statements and
the high level of management’s judgement involved.
HRERZEReEFBEVNEE BVEE HKBEEEY
% B N 2% 2 M E R HAR S M ISR AR ER A

EREZEREHE AR ERNE KRR A E R EZ
%Iéi g

Our audit procedures to address the impairment assessment
of intangible assets, mining rights and property, plant and
equipment included the following:

RZEEN AR E BB E  REE LY E BB RERE
ZRER A EEEZEFBEAT:

° We assessed the management’s identification of the
CGUs based on our understanding of the Group’s
operation.

. ERAZEAE BEREEBHTH
ZEHeEEEM ZHR -

Al E IR

° We assessed the competency, independence and
objectivity of the independent external valuer taking into
account of their experiences and qualifications;

. FLE A AN (BRI 2 BT B REE R E
BRMNE REGE

° We assessed the cash flow forecast prepared by
the management, as assisted by the independent
external valuer, in determining the CGUs (“Forecasts”)
and discussed with them to evaluate the valuation
methodologies used and tested the main assumptions
applied (including the expected future cash flows and
discount rates, where appropriate) against historical
trends and market data;

. A EREEBRANEEZSHeEASMN BB INE
HERN BB T EFERRSRETRR ([FBR]) - HEE
BaimARANmERTE S BEBE M5
BAFREAz EERE (BEMEFEARKEERE
AR E R RS ER)

° We checked the mathematical accuracy for the

calculation of the recoverable amount of the CGUs.

o BHFAERFREELBMAIREISE A EERN -
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Other information included in the annual report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

B

ERBGAVBHRRE BEAQ
i BEREREKENREN URBERFELE
BEM=R(ER) KRFE BERRERRE
K BEEEFR HiFILEE KR 2 E
HnBRAITHHE  BRAIESARANFERL
ERERNEHE-

\[[DI'H
S
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o
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BERER
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BEEE BEXENMBHRERE-
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BREMBERGEMBRRARENEM

AZHEN B IR SR ERERR R MHRE
EETNFEBRRAFFHHERMEMNEXRHERR
A3 B S AR (1F R — AR RIRH
ERNREHESRR BTREEEOREERS -

ATgARNEMRAE AR T ERAREA
AEEMEMATAEETREZER - S ERF
EIEEERNRE BTRERBESEZH
EAETHERER " EXERRLFERZ
BB IR BB AR R - B4 RR PR RLR O AR FF k88
A RERI B RESIEABER T AZEER
ERBEAMBRREDOLBRER  HEL
B AR RERL -

AZHEBRBEEBRBEAETERNTELZ
— BERFERHE EEEFZERETRITR
HIEEERRE - AN EEN T

o BRI RFHERAMBERRANRIFNER
38 B i) B K HE R - R LR R
AARATERERF BERARIEENE
BB RAZEBMNERREER BN
BIESRARPE ME WEER RE
T BR A 3O% B A BB R ) - It R BE 3 3R i
b 38 X O B K 86 R R g BE R BE 32 3R R 086
RMEHHEAFHRARES -

s  THEEZBEBOANBES ARFRE

MBZEF BYFEEY EKRENAE
ZHEBNBERIEERER -
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o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors of the Company.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matter in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Siu Jimmy with practising certificate number P05898.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 March 2018

10/F., 8 Observatory Road,
Tsimshatsui, Hong Kong

BFRBEBRE SRR R  HBE L AR
EUBBRERTFNREESER  EREX
B -BRIFERIER T B RARARBELEFER
FEBRFENERT  HARA/EENLFEERT
BEFAHNNIRERGEBRARAEBUFERN
MEm N EERED TUARE  SRIRMEER
HED R E P A F IR

HERBIZHMBENEZBEESEAFEE
B S ZEEERIRAP05898 °
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Consolicated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meEakHEMEENEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #t% —F—+F+_-HA=+—HIFFZE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E FEx FHET
Revenue g 5(a) 468,601 256,004
Cost of sales SHE B AR (362,506) (219,986)
Gross profit EX 106,095 36,018
Other income HE A 5(b) 4,672 67,297
Other gains and losses H b U 75 N &5 18 6 (88,435) (53,829)
Administrative expenses 1T (95,489) (131,672)
Other operating expenses H st - (248,007)
Loss from operations KERFE (73,157) (330,1993)
Finance costs A& A AR 8 (121,366) (39,724)
Loss before income tax BRATIS B AT E 18 9 (194,523) (369,917)
Taxation I 12 13,317 9,521
Loss for the year KEEER (181,206) (360,396)
Attributable to: PEqh
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZ SN (145,774) (324,425)
Non-controlling interests FEEAR (35,432) (35,971)
(181,206) (860,396)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
mEBERkHEMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #t% —F—+F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B EE TEx FHET
Loss for the year REEEE (181,206) (360,396)
Other comprehensive loss Hit2mEEE (NRHBEFE)
(Net of tax effect):
Items that are or may be reclassified R 14 E 3757 28 21, 7] 5
subsequently to profit or l0ss: B R R EE -
Exchange differences arising from BREBFINIBRRIEEZ
translation of foreign subsidiaries ] (62,845) (132,506)
Other comprehensive loss for the year AEEHME2HEER (62,845) (132,506)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEERXHEREAE (244,051) (492,902)
Attributable to: BEAh -
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEF =N (226,980) (445,322)
Non-controlling interests IR = (17,071) (47,580)
(244,051) (492,902)
Loss per share BREE
- Basic, HK cents —EA B 14(a) (0.68) (1.63)
— Diluted, HK cents — 5% . B 14(b) (0.68) (1.63)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI L R R

As at 31 December 2017 R —F—+#1+=-H=+—H

31 December

31 December

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
+=B=+—-H +=ZA=+—H”
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
{h=s FET T T
ASSETS BE
Non-Current Assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W WE KA 15 977,120 495 555
Prepaid lease payments A EERIA 16 72,974 52,750
Mining rights PRI 17 3,402,590 996,303
Goodwill EES 18 69,131 13,403
Investment deposits KBRS 19 600,000 600,000
Prepayment for acquisition of subsidiaries U B B B A B M TE S FUE 20 - 845,712
Intangible assets w|IEE 21 454,787 =
Finance lease receivables EUmERE 22 5,077 =
5,581,679 3,003,723
Current Assets REEE
Other financial assets Hi B EE 23 - 300,000
Finance lease receivables rURERE 22 1,314 =
Inventories FE 24 472,640 413,824
Trade and bill receivables FEN IR TR R R 25 66,660 8,052
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables T8 15 A ~ 17 & K H i & U 51 26 252,408 356,854
Cash and cash equivalents HeREeEEY 27 162,317 596,003
955,339 1,674,733
Total Assets EEHAE 6,537,018 4,678,456
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#EE
Share capital A& 7 28 343,926 344,921
Reserves T 2,758,390 2,994,363
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A &) # A A FE{G 2 3,102,316 3,339,284
Non-controlling interests JEIERER 1,504,726 86,946
Total Equity S AEE 4,607,042 3,426,230
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e B RS AR L R R

As at 31 December 2017 R—F—+#1+=-H=+—H

31 December

31 December

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—REF
+=-—BA=+—HB +=—A=+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B FET T T
LIABILITIES =L
Non-Current Liabilities kRBEMRS
Bank loans and other borrowing RITERNHEMES 34 251,321 =
Convertible bonds AR &5 29 - 340,471
Deferred tax liabilities EETIEEE 30 394,227 273,112
645,548 613,583
Current Liabilities #REBEE
Trade and bill payables EREREEE 31 184,859 70,599
Other payables and accruals HMERNHRRESER 33 148,775 95,677
Bank loans and other borrowings RITERRHMEE 34 596,343 361,167
Provision for environmental and resources tax IB{R & &R & 32 - 88,666
Convertible bonds AR B 5 29 344,686 -
Tax payables e IR 9,765 22,534
1,284,428 638,643
Total Liabilities EEAE 1,929,976 1,252,226
Total Equity and Liabilities EERABEEE 6,537,018 4,678,456
Net Current (Liabilities)/Assets #E(AE) EEFEE (329,089) 1,036,090
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities EEABRRBARE 5,252,590 4,039,813
Net Assets EEZRE 4,607,042 3,426,230

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2018 and signed on its

behalf by:

Yang Ying Min
BRE
Director

BF

Qian Yi Dong
#g—&
Director

=

BEMBRREEFEN T N\F=A-F+N
BHERRETE YH FTIALTRERE:
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #t% —F—+F+_-HA=+—HIFFZE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG 2PN
Capital Convertible Non-
Share Share  Contributed  redemption Capital bond  Statutory  Exchange Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserves reserve reserve losses Subtotal interests equity
TRR
RE  RHEE  EERR S4ARERE  HABE  RBEE GERE  ERRE  20EE Nt FERER  BRAE
HK$ 000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK§'000 HKS'000
T T T T THL L T T T T T T
At 1 January 2016 RZF-1%
-A-H 318441 3562406 31,350 - (894) - 12677 30,105 (413380) 3,540,704 134626 3675230
Loss and total comprehensive loss REEEER
for the year 2EFRER - - - - - - - (10807) (4425 (445329 (47580 (492,902)
Issuance of convertble bonds EaaRES - - - - - 8902 - - - 8902 - 8902
Subscription of shares RBERH 26,480 208,520 - - - - - - - 235,000 - 235,000
At 31 December 2016 and
at 1 January 2017
344,921 3770925 31,350 - (894) 8,902 12,617 (90,792) (137,808) 3,339,284 86946 3426230
Loss and total comprehensive loss
for the year - - - - - - - B1206) (145774 (22690) (7071)  (44.051)
Acquistion of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - 1434851 1,434,851
Repurchase of shares (995) (8.993) - 9% - - - - (995) (9.988) - (9,988)
Transfer - - - - - - 3977 - 8977 = = =
At 31 December 2017
tZA=1-H U396 3761932 31,350 995 (894) 8,902 16,654 (171998)  (888551) 3102316 1504726 4,607,042

76 North Mining Shares Company Limited Annual Report 2017



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GeaReRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #t% —F—+F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

2017 2016
—ZE—+F —ENF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FHET
Cash flows from operating activities KRETHELECRSRE
Loss from operations KB EE (194,523) (369,917)
Imputed interest income arising from promissory notes 7 3, Z 5 & 4 2 {H E A B U A - (54,372)
Loan interest income ERA B HA - (5,085)
Bank interest income ERITHI B UA (174) (7,840)
Imputed interest expenses arising from AR ESFEE ZHEFERAX
convertible bonds 39,099 535
Loan interest expenses BHFEREZ 82,267 39,724
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y BEREEBETE 27,458 18,876
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments AR E R IRE 5,524 5,595
Amortisation of mining right PRUEE iR 50,569 38,101
Amortisation of intangible assets & 32,485 =
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWME BWE M&FEER 286 55
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes ‘&8 & & E B 5 2 &£ &% 5
/ (E#8) 42,991 (334,328)
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories BFERAD, (M) 22,138 (30,853)
Decrease in trade and FEWER R R ER TR IE ik e Rk
bill receivables, prepayments, H b i W SRRk
deposits and other receivables 265,268 15,404
Decrease in trade and bill payables, BRI RRE  EMENTKE
other payables and accruals FERTFRIER (92,247) (85,257)
Cash used in operations KERMAZRS 238,150 (435,034)
Tax paid [EENE 2 (21,350) (26)
Other tax paid H B IA (91,637) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) KeESEBRE (R 2B FHE
operating activities 125,163 (435,060)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHELEZEHESRE
Interest received BEHHE 174 12,925
Purchase of items of property, plant and equipment BAMZE - BERZBEIEE
and addition to properties under development URARBEERPYE (1,750) (4,011)
Net cash outflow for acquisition of a subsidiary W — R B A Rl M 3R & i i F &8 (468,597) =
Net cash outflow of acquisition of assets through BRVENBARIKEBEE Y
acquisition of subsidiaries R FE (53,566) -
Received from settlement of loan receivable Bl EKEREE - 178,671
Refund of deposit for investments REKREERS - 450,672
Received from settlement of promissory notes BWEARRBREEE 300,000 200,000
Prepayments for acquisition of subsidiaries U B2 BT B A B O TS B IE - (845,712)
Net cash used in investing activities BRETEFTAZ
HEFHE (223,739) (7,455)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #t% —F—+F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Cash flows from financing activities METHELECRSRE
Proceed from bank loans RITERASRE 432,136 361,689
Loan interest paid ENERFE (82,267) (39,724)
Repayment of loans BEER (665,956) (98,776)
Repayment of convertible bonds EEARRES (25,000) -
Repurchase of shares EAEl g (9,988) =
Net cash inflow from issuance of convertible bonds B MRES CHESRAFE - 348,838
Proceeds from issuance of shares BTN TS 5 - 235,000
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing BMEEE (FTA)  FE2RLFE
activities (351,075) 807,027
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash RERBESEEW 2 (RD)
equivalents /R (449,651) 364,512
Cash and bank balances at 1 January R—A—BzZzRERBITER 596,003 225,362
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SNEERSB o HE TR (90,255) 6,129
Cash and bank balances at 31 December R+-—B=+—HZzEERK
RITEE 56,097 596,003
Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents RE R R EZEBYEBRZ DT
Cash and bank balances B & RIRTTE 56,097 596,003
Pledged bank deposits BEEBRITER 106,220 =
Cash and cash equivalents BehBeEEY 162,317 596,003
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
mE B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #t2 —ZF—+F+—-H=4+—HIFFZF

1. GENERAL INFORMATION AND STATEMENT OF
COMPLIANCE AND BASIS FOR PREPARATION

1.1

1.2

General information

North Mining Shares Company Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liabilities. The address of the registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The principal place of business
is located at Rooms 1505-7, 15/F, Shui On Centre, 6-8
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The shares of the
Company are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

The principal activities of the Company are investment
holdings. The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are mining, property management,
manufacture and sales of chemical products and sales of
security technologies products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same functional currency of the
Company.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (“Directors”),
the ultimate holding company of the Company is China Wan
Tai Group Limited, which was incorporated in Hong Kong.

Statement of compliance and basis for
preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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80

GENERAL INFORMATION AND STATEMENT OF
COMPLIANCE AND BASIS FOR PREPARATION
(Continued)

1.2 Statement of compliance and basis for
preparation (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs under the historical cost
convention. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
also include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

1.3 Going concern

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
Directors have considered the future liquidity of the Group.
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had net current liabilities
of approximately HK$329,089,000 and incurred net loss
of approximately HK$181,206,000 for the year ended 31
December 2017. These conditions indicate the existence
of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
therefore the Group may be unable to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

Notwithstanding the aforesaid conditions, these consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis on the assumption that the Group will be able to
operate as a going concern for the foreseeable future. In
the opinion of the Directors, the Group can meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due within the next year
from the date of the consolidated financial statements, after
taking into consideration of the following measures and
arrangements made subsequent to the reporting date:

0} As at the date of approving these consolidated
financial statements, the Group obtained loan facilities
of approximately HK$350,000,000 which is carrying
interest at 12% per annum;
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION AND STATEMENT OF 1.
COMPLIANCE AND BASIS FOR PREPARATION
(Continued)

1.3 Going concern (Continued) 1.3 FEKE (&)
EFRMBRERSE THNEAE
BEEEe NBEERENE
e BIE Y B — AT
XREBERAN &

(ii) The Directors will strengthen to implement measures (i)
aiming of improving the working capital and cash flows
of the Group including closely monitoring the general
administrative expenses and operating costs; and

B KEE TRITER UG
BOMRITRE (WBLR) °

(i) ~ The Directors will negotiate with certain bankers to (iii)
obtain additional banking facilities, if necessary.

In light of the measures and arrangements implemented ERESEERNERREZH EF

g

to date, the Directors are of the view that the Group has
sufficient cash resources to satisfy its working capital and
other financial obligations for the next twelve months from
the date of the consolidated financial statements, after
having taken into account of the Group’s projected cash
flows, current financial resources and capital expenditure
requirements with respect to the development of its
businesses. Accordingly, the Directors are of the view that
it is appropriate to prepare these consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis. Should the Group
be unable to continue to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to restate the value of
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and
current liabilities, respectively. The effects of these potential
adjustments have not been reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.
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2.

82

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

2.1 Application of new and revised HKFRSs

During the year, HKICPA issued certain amendments and
interpretations which are or have become effective. It
has also issued certain new and revised HKFRSs which
are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. The following
paragraph provides information on initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected
in these consolidated financial statements.

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA.

Amendments to HKFRS 12 Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for

unrealised Losses
The initial application of these financial reporting standards

does not necessitate material changes in the Group’s
accounting policies.
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2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. RHFFTRLETEBUMERE

Amendments to HKFRS 12

Annual improvements to HKFRSs (2014-2016 cycle) include
an amendment to HKFRS 12 that clarifies that, when an
entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture or an associate
(or a portion of its interest in a joint venture or an associate)
is classified (or included in a disposal group that is classified)
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets held for Sale and Discontinued operations, it is not
required to disclose summarised financial information for that
subsidiary, joint venture or associate, as required by HKFRS
12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities.

Amendments to HKAS 7

The amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to make
disclosures that aim to enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.
The application of the amendments has not had any material
effect on the financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12

The amendments to HKAS 12 clarify when unrealised losses
on a debt instrument measured at fair value would give rise
to a deductible temporary difference and how to evaluate
whether sufficient future taxable profits are available to utilise
a deductible temporary difference.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 28 (48)

(Continued)

2.1 Application of new and revised HKFRSs 21 FERAFNFRKEITEBMERE
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2.

84

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

2.2 New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

Annual Improvements Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle
Project HKFRS 1 and (amendments)’
HKAS 28

HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions
(amendments)’

HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
(amendments)’

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(new standard)’

HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15 (amendments)’

HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property
(amendments)’

HK(FRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration (new
interpretation)’

HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation (amendments)?

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HK(FRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

(new interpretation)?

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture (amendments)®

K Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

3 A date to be determined by the IASB

The above new and revised HKFRSs does not have any
impact to the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #t2 —ZF—+F+—-H=4+—HIFFZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

3.1

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

- has power over the investee;

- is posed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

— the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relevant
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

- potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

= rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

- any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current ability
to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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86

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.1 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s entity
therein. Non-controlling interests in the net assets consist
of the amount of those interests at the date of the original
business combination and the minority’s share of changes in
equity since the date of the combination. Losses applicable
to the minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the
subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the
Group except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional investment to
cover the losses.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, income, expenses and

cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Business combination

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in

profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the

acquisition date, except that:

— deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

respectively;

— liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment transactions of the acquire or the
replacement of an acquiree’s share-based payment
transactions with share-based payment transactions of
the Group are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2

Sharebased Payment at the acquisition date; and

- assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are

measured in accordance with that standard.

—tFF—A=1—HILFE

3.

BEASHBERE (&)

3.2

XKE6t

52 B 355 765 B PR LS B R B %WAﬁ
ZEERERATENE Mat8H
ABAEBIEECEEZRER
HAFE AEBRAWKESIES
ANFEME 7 BERANEE R
BHIEGEMBETCRATIRE 242
Mo WEREER —MREERER
R o

RUREE B B - PR RT3 B B B e P
AEREDIRKE B B Q P ER
B HEA TSRS :

- BEREAERAMEREAE
FIZ 2 AR ERAES S
BB R EHERIE 1255
REB RN E 0K ESE
FIRRRG &

- HERWEAZBEONNRRSE
AR EE 2 RN RR S
BRI R TS 2 B (X 5
BRZBEIBRATE IR
Yis A iR & B I i s 22 R
FSRROMAFE: ]

- REFBHBHREEREHR
FFIEHEZHRBEER B
Ltfféé%fk/‘*ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂj B2
BE (HHEAR) L LERE

E°

2017 F3 A FRERDBR A E 87



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z—Z

3.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Business combination (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis.

Where the consideration the Group transfers in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and considered as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments being made against goodwill or
gain on bargain purchase. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the measurement period about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date.
Measurement period does not exceed one year from the
acquisition date.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Business combination (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment
would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity before the acquisition date are reclassified to profit
or loss when the Group obtains control over the acquiree.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
as of that date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

3.3

Business combination (Continued)

Contingent consideration was recognised, if and only if,
the contingent consideration was probable and could be
measured reliably. Subsequent adjustments to contingent
consideration were recognised against the cost of the
acquisition.

Business combinations achieved in stages were accounted
for as separate steps. Goodwill was determined at each
step. Any additional acquisition did not affect the previously
recognised goodwill.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair values,
the remaining balance of the purchase price is then allocated
to the other individual identifiable assets and liabilities on
the basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase.
Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition of a business represents the
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest
in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the relevant business at the date of
acquisition. Such goodwill is carried at cost at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or group of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
mE B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #t2 —ZF—+F+—-H=4+—HIFFZF

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.3

3.4

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to other assets of the unit pro rata based in the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.
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3.

92

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.5 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provision of
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(@) Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into the
following categories: Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments,
available-for-sale financial assets and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchase or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchase or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
mE B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #t2 —ZF—+F+—-H=4+—HIFFZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.5 Financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Financial assets (Continued)

()

(i)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset and of allocating interest income over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or (where appropriate)
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss
on an effective interest basis other than those
financial assets classified as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
includes financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss and all derivatives
other than hedging instruments.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if:

- it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling it in the near term;
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3.

94

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.5 Financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Financial assets (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (Continued)

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held
for trading may be designated as at fair value
through profit or loss upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise;
or

the financial asset forms part of a group
of financial assets or financial liabilities
or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with the Group's
documented risk management or
investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that
basis; or
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
mE B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #t2 —ZF—+F+—-H=4+—HIFFZF

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.5 Financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (Continued)

- it forms part of a contract containing one
or more embedded derivatives, and HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement permits the entire combined
contract to be designated as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value, with any gains
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned
on the financial assets and is included in the
other gain and losses line item.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity that the Group’s
management has the positive intention and
ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity
investments are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses. Amortised
cost is calculated taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction cost.
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3.

96

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.5 Financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated as
available-for-sale or not classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables or held-for-maturity investments.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that
are classified as available-for-sale financial assets
and are traded in an active market are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the carrying amount of available-
for-sale monetary financial assets relating to
interest income calculated using the effective
interest method and dividends on available-
for-sale equity investments are recognised in
profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. When the investment is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the investments revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

The fair value of available-for-sale monetary
financial assets denominated in a foreign
currency is determined in that foreign currency
and translated at the spot rate prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. The foreign
exchange gains and losses that are recognised
in profit or loss are determined based on
the amortised cost of the monetary asset.
Other foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
mE B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #t2 —ZF—+F+—-H=4+—HIFFZF

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.5 Financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

v

Available-for-sale financial assets
(Continued)

For available-for-sale equity investments that
do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and
must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end
of the reporting period.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity investments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s
right to receive the dividends is established.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment losses.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate and transaction cost.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EASHBEHE @)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.5 Financial instruments (Continued) 35 €@MIA(#®)
(a) Financial assets (Continued) (@) HMEEE (&)

98

(vi)

(vii)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
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the financial asset and also recognises a BEMBRIZBRID

collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

Impairment of financial assets

At each end of reporting period, financial assets
other than at fair value through profit or loss
are reviewed to determine whether there is any
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significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the security below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #t2 —ZF—+F+—-H=4+—HIFFZF

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.5 Financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets (Continued)

(vii)

Impairment of financial assets

Objective evidence of impairment of individual
financial assets includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

= significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

— breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such
as trade receivables, assets are assessed for
impairment on a collective basis even if they
were assessed not to be impaired individually.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period, as
well as observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.

For financial assets that are carried at amortised
cost, the amount of the impairment loss
recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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3.

100

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.5 Financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets (Continued)

(vii) Impairment of financial assets

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset
is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). The amount of the loss is
recognised in profit or loss of the period in which
the impairment occurs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #t% —F—+F+_-HA=+—HIFFZ

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.5 Financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial assets (Continued)

(vii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to
the extent that it does not result in a carrying
amount of the financial asset exceeding what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in profit or loss of the
period in which the reversal occurs.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by the Group

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liabilities and an equity

instrument.

()

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company’s own instruments.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.5 Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by the Group (Continued)

(i)

Compound instruments

The component parts of compound instruments

issued by the Group are classified separately as

financial liabilities and equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangement.
At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component is estimated using the prevailing

market interest rate for a similar non-convertible
instrument. This amount is recorded as a
liability on an amortised cost basis using the

effective interest method until extinguished

upon conversion or at the instrument’s maturity

date. The equity component is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component
from the fair value of the compound instrument
as a whole. This is recognised and included

in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not

subsequently re-measured.

In addition, the conversion option classified as

equity will remain in equity until the conversion

option is exercised, in which case, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to share
premium and share capital. VWWhen the conversion
option remains unexercised at the maturity date
of the convertible note, the balance recognised
in equity will be transferred to retained earnings.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
upon conversion or expiration of the conversion
option.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
mE B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #t2 —ZF—+F+—-H=4+—HIFFZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.5 Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by the Group (Continued)

(ifi)

(iv)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or (where appropriate)
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised in profit or loss on
an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or
other financial liabilities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.5 Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by the Group (Continued)

(v)  Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (“Financial liabilities at
FVTPL”)

Financial liabilities are classified as at fair value
through profit or loss when the financial liability is
either held for trading or it is designated as at fair
value through profit or loss.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading
if:

- it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of repurchasing it in the near
term;

- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages tighter and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

- it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value, with any gains
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 Bt2 —ZF—+F+—-H=1+—HIFFZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.5 Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by the Group (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings,
are initially measured at fair value, net of
transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, with interest expense
recognised on an effective yield basis.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

106

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the profit or loss in the period in which it
is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use
of the property, plant and equipment, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of that asset.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment, using the straight line method, over
their estimated useful lives. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Mining structure and building,

plant and machinery 20 years
Leasehold improvement 3 to 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

The gain or loss arising from disposal of an asset is
determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the
profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.7 Leasehold interests in land

3.8

3.9

Leasehold interests in land are classified as operating
leases and presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position when all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership are not substantially
transferred to the Group. Leasehold interests in land are
amortised in the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease or when there is impairment, the
impairment is recognised in the profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. The amount of the provision
is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision
is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Mining rights

Mining rights acquired separately are initially measured at
cost. Mining rights are reclassified from exploration and
evaluation assets at the carrying amount when the technical
feasibility and commercial viability of extracting mineral
resources are demonstrable. Mining rights with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any identified impairment loss. Amortisation for mining rights
with finite useful lives is provided using the unit of production
method based on the actual production volume over the
estimated total proved and probable reserves of the mineral
mines.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.10 Current assets and current liabilities

—tFF—A=1—HILFE

Current assets are expected to be realised within twelve
months of the end of reporting period or in the normal course
of the Group’s operating cycle. Current liabilities are expected
to be settled within twelve months of the end of reporting
period or in the normal course of the Group’s operating
cycle.

3.11Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
method.

3.12Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less,
and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities on the consolidated statement
of financial position.

3.13Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have been decreased:
- Property, plant and equipment

— Prepaid lease payments

- Mining rights
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 Bt2 —ZF—+F+—-H=1+—HIFFZF

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.13Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. In addition, for intangible assets that are not yet
available for use and intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually
whether or not there is any indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of
its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment loss

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro-rata basis, except that
the carrying amount of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs to sell, or value
in use, if determinable.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.13Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favorable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill
is not reversible. A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in which
the reversals are recognised.

3.14Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

Sales of molybdenum concentrate, chemical
products and security technology

Sales of goods are measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts of goods sold in the normal course of
business, net of sales related tax. Sales of goods are
recognised upon transfer of the significant risks and
rewards of ownership to the customer. This is usually
taken as the time when the goods are delivered and
the customer has accepted the goods.

Rental income from operating lease

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term. Lease incentives
granted are recognised as an integral part of the
aggregate lease payments receivable. Contingent
rentals are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.14Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income and property management
income

Interest income from bank deposits and loans
receivable are accrued on a time-apportioned basis
by reference to the principal outstanding and the
rate applicable. Property management income is
recognised when the services are rendered.

3.15Foreign currencies

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
HK dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transaction and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, except when deferred in equity as qualifying
cash flow hedges or qualifying net investment hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such
as equity instruments held at fair value through profit or
loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on non-monetary items, such as
equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets,
are included in the fair value reserve in equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.15Foreign currencies (Continued)

(iii)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(1)  assets and liabilities for each financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(2) income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions); and

(8) all resulting exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are taken
to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is
sold, such exchange differences are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of the gain or
loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EASTHERHE )
POLICIES (Continued)
3.16Lease 3.16 &
Leases are classes are classified as finance leases whenever WA & 2GRS T A 2 B RO E
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risk and % & Bl #REE 5 T AMEA - EHEHER
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are HAmANS -FTEAMBEERSHR

classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to
the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-
line basis.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect
of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.17 Stripping costs

—tFF—A=1—HILFE

Stripping costs incurred during the production phase are
generally considered to create two benefits, being either
the production of inventory or improved access to the ore
to be mined in the future. Where the benefits are realised in
the form of inventory produced in the period, the production
stripping costs are accounted for as part of the cost of
producing those inventories.

Where the benefits are realised in the form of improved
access to ore to be mined in the future, the costs are
recognised as a stripping activity asset and is accounted
for as an addition to, or an enhancement of, the ‘Mining
Infrastructure’ in the statement of financial position if the
following criteria are met:

(@ it is probable that the future economic benefit
(improved access to the ore body) associated with the

stripping activity will flow to the entity;

(o)  the entity can identify the component of the ore body
for which access has been improved; and

(c) the costs relating to the stripping activity associated
with that component can be measured reliably.

Other production stripping costs are charged to the profit or
loss as operating costs as they are incurred.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 Bt2 —ZF—+F+—-H=1+—HIFFZF

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.17 Stripping costs (Continued)

The stripping activity asset is initially measured at cost, which
is the accumulation of costs directly incurred to perform
the stripping activity that improves access to the identified
component of ore, plus an allocation of directly attributable
overhead costs.

If the costs of the inventory produced and the stripping
activity asset are not separately identifiable, a relevant
production measure is used to allocate the production
stripping costs between the inventory produced and the
stripping activity asset. This production measure is calculated
for the identified component of the ore body and is used as
a benchmark to identify the extent to which the additional
activity of creating a future benefit has taken place. The
Group uses the expected volume of waste extracted
compared with the actual volume for a given volume of ore
production of each component.

The stripping activity asset is subsequently depreciated using
the unit of production basis over the life of the identified
component of the ore body that became more accessible as
a result of the stripping activity. The stripping activity asset
is then carried at cost less depreciation and any impairment
losses.

3.18 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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3.

116

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.19 Employee benefits

(i) Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave
passage and the cost to the Group of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees of the
Group. Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts are stated
at their present values.

(ii) Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as
required under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance and to the state-managed
retirement benefits schemes for the employees of
the Group’s overseas entities are recognised as an
expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as incurred.

(i) Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

(iv)  The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments
to certain directors and employees. Equity-settled
share-based payments are measured at fair value
(excluding the effect of non-market-based vesting
condition) of the equity instruments at the date of
grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of the
equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest.

3.20 Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit is the profit for the year, determined
in accordance with the rules established by the taxation
authorities, upon which income taxes are payable.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 Bt2 —ZF—+F+—-H=1+—HIFFZF

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.20 Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable
on differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available which deductible temporary difference can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill (or gain on bargain
purchase) or from the initial recognition (other than a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investment in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Company is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each end of reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the year when the liability is settled or the asset
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items charged or credited directly
to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in
equity.

3.21 Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Where the effect of the time value
of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present
value at the end of reporting period of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EASHBEHE @)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.22Contingent liabilities and contingent 322 FRABRAREE

118

assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. A
contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset
is recognised.

3.23 Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements,
related parties include a person and an entity as defined
below:

(i) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(@  has control or joint control over the Group;

(b)  has significant influence over the Group;

(c) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Company or of a parent of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z—=ZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.23 Related parties (Continued)

(i)

An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if any
of the following conditions applies:

(@)

the entity and the Company are members of
the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

either entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of a third entity;

either entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Company or an entity related to the Company.
If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to the
plan;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i);

a person identified in (i)(@) has significant voting
power in the entity;

the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personal
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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4

120

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below.

4.1 Useful life of property, plant and

equipment

The Group estimates the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment in order to determine the amount of depreciation
expenses to be recorded. The useful lives are estimated at
the time the asset is acquired based on historical experience,
the expected usage, wear and tear of the assets, as well as
technical obsolescence arising from changes in the market
demands or service output of the assets. The Group also
performs annual reviews on whether the assumptions made
on useful lives continue to be valid.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.2 Amortisation and impairment of mining

rights

Mining rights are amortised using the unit of production
method based on the actual production volume over
the estimated total proved and probable reserve of the
molybdenum mines.

The process of estimating quantities of reserves is inherently
uncertain and complex. It requires significant judgment
and decision based on available geological, geophysical
engineering and economic data. These estimates may
change substantially as additional data from ongoing
development activities and production performance becomes
available and as economic conditions impacting mineral
prices and costs change. Reserve estimates are based
on current production forecasts, prices and economic
conditions. The directors exercise their judgments in
estimating the total proved and probable reserves of the
molybdenum mines. If the quantities of reserves are different
from current estimates, it will result in significant changes
to amortisation of mining rights and affect the recoverable
amount of exploration and evaluation, from which a material
loss may arise.

The carrying amounts of mining rights are reviewed for
impairment assessment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable in accordance with the accounting policy as
disclosed in the relevant part of this section. The recoverable
amounts of mining rights, or where appropriate, the
cash-generating-units to which they belong, are calculated as
the higher of its fair values less costs to sell and value in use.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to estimate the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating-units
and to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.
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4

122

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.3

4.4

Impairment of loans and receivables

The aged debt profile of trade debtors is reviewed on a
regular basis to ensure that the trade debtor balances are
collectible and follow up actions are promptly carried out if
the agreed credit periods have been exceeded. However,
from time to time, the Group may experience delays in
collection. Where recoverability of trade debtor balances are
called into doubts, specific provisions for bad and doubtful
debts are made based on credit status of the customers,
the aged analysis of the trade receivable balances and write-
off history. Certain receivables may be initially identified
as collectible, yet subsequently become uncollectible and
result in a subsequent write-off of the related receivable
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Changes in the collectability of trade
receivables for which provisions are not made could affect
our results of operations.

Net realisable values of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycles. Management will
reassess the estimations at the end of the reporting period.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.5

4.6

Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in different jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income tax. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
to be probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

Amortisation and impairment of intangible
assets

The cost of intangible assets acquired in business
combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that intangible asset may
be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in profit or loss in the period when the assets
are derecognised.
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5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and other income is as follows:

5, WHEKEMKA

AEBWEREMBAZ AT :

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx FHT
(a) Revenue: (a) Uz
Sales of molybdenum concentrate SHEBIEH 202,928 248,311
Property management fee income IER=BEE-T PN 7,487 7,693
Sales of chemical products HE(LBER 199,694 —
Sales of security technologies products SHERZ HTE M@ 58,492 -
468,601 256,004
(b) Other income: (b) HfbUA:
Bank interest income HRITH B WA 174 7,840
Imputed interest on promissory notes EAEBREE ZHEF S - 54,372
Loan interest income BERA B A - 5,085
Sales of by-products $HE Bl E m 4,498 =
4,672 67,207
6. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 6. HizRERE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments A E R (5,524) (5,595)
Amortisation of mining rights PRAE R 5 (50,569) (38,101)
Amortisation of intangible assets EmI A EEH (32,485) -
Impairment loss on other receivables H b e OB E & 1B - (10,078)
Gain on de-registration of subsidiaries Bt /B A~ Bl B R 2 W 143 -
Loss on disposal of property, LEWE - BER&HE2EE
plant and equipment - (55)
(88,435) (568,829)
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments has been identified on the basis of internal
reports about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed
by the chief operating decision maker for the purpose of allocating
resources to segments and to assessing their performance.

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business

units based on their products and services and has four reportable

operating segments as follows:

(@  Mining operation: — Exploration of mineral mines

— Exploitation of molybdenum
mines

— Trading of mineral resources

(b)  Property management
operation:

Provision of management service
to commercial premises

(c)  Chemical trading
operation:

Manufacturing and sale of
chemical products

(d)  Security technologies
operation:

Research, development and
sale of security technologies
products

The management monitors the operating results of its business
units separately for the purpose of making decision about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on operating profits or loss and is measured
consistently with operating profit or loss in the consolidated financial
statements. Information regarding the above segment is reported
below.
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7.

126

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
7.1 Operating segment information

7. oEER (&)
71 KREHFER

Segment revenue and results PERERES
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z—+tH+=-A=+—HL
FE
Mining operation
BRES
Sale of
Trading of Trading of security
Property Mining mineral chemical  technologies
management  exploitation’ resources products products Total
HE
EE EE RERK
NEEE BERR BELR LEER Em ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET
Revenue s
Segment revenue PEBE 7,487 189,540 13,388 199,694 58,492 468,601
Results' ¥
Segment results FEEE (301) (25,739) (767) (22,404) 4116 (45,005)
Unallocated corporate income ~ KAEAFKA 4,672
Unallocated corporate expenses K2 &2 Af % (154,100)
Loss before income tax RESHAEE (194,523)
Income tax FieH 13,317
Loss for the year KEERE (181,206)
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. EER (&)
7.1 Operating segment information (Continued) 71 REFSEER (F)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) EREREE (1E)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—XR"F+-_A=+—H1
FE
Mining operation
REXB
Trading of
Property Mining mineral
management exploitation? resources Total
BE
MEER EERR BEAR @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THAT THT THT
Revenue i
Segment revenue kLG 7,693 235,591 12,720 256,004
Results' £
Segment results DEEE o) (42,294) (292) (42,595)
Unallocated corporate income ADEAFMRA 67,297
Unallocated corporate expenses APERARAY (394,619)
Loss before income tax BRETE B AIE R (369,917)
Income tax Frisin 9,521
Loss for the year REFER (360,396)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation
of assets attributable to those segments. Segment result
represents the profit earned by each segment without
allocation of corporate income and expenses, central
administrative expenses, directors’ salaries and finance costs.
This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision
maker for the purpose of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, segment results for
mining exploitation included amortisation of mining rights
of approximately HK$50,569,000 (2016: approximately
HK$38,101,000), and operating expenses which are directly
related to the reportable segment.

WARRXZ T2 ZRHREDRESE
ZHERRMX XA @D RN
AENESBHMEEE SRR
BEDR D EEREBEERIER
ARARRAX FRITERER &
EFERBERAZBERTENHE
P BREROR A = 1tk A3 () = 2 2 E R K
FEEBADREREFERFZE

=
E-°

HE=-Z—tH&+=-A=1+—H
IHEE BEERREE O EER
B 15 B § B HE 4950,569,00078 70
(== — 754 : #938,101,0007% 7T )
REZAIHEDBFEERB LS
T
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
7.1 Operating segment information (Continued)

7. oEER (&)
71 RESFEFR (HF)

Segment assets and liabilities PHEEERAR
Mining operation
RmER
Sale of
Trading of Trading of security
Property Mining mineral chemical  technologies
management  exploitation resources products products  Unallocated Total
#HE
EE Eg REHI
NEEE BEBR BESR tEER ER KB @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TAL TEL TEL TEL
As at 31 December 2017 BR=B-tF+ZA=t-8
Segment assets FEEE 1,832 4,192,563 392,708 593,618 159,313 1,196,984 6,537,018
Segment liabilities AEEE 1,323 832,449 - 261,303 198,014 636,887 1,929,976
As at 31 December 2016 RZE-~E+ZA=t-8
Segment assets PEEE 1,440 1,659,742 389,271 - - 2,728,003 4,678,456
Segment liabilties ARRE 991 625,748 18,112 - - 612,375 1,252,226

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than assets used jointly reportable segments which are
classified as “Others” in segment assets.

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than liabilities for which reportable segments are jointly
liable and classified as “Others” in segment liabilities.
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

7.1 Operating segment information (Continued)

7.2

7. DEEH(H)

71 KREQFEFR (HF)

Other segment information HthnBER
Mining operation
FRER
Sale of
Trading of Trading of security
Property Mining mineral chemical  technologies
management  exploitation resources products products  Unallocated Total
HE
g8 EE REEH
nEER WERR REER LBER Em KA @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TiEx TR THT TiEx TR T
As at 31 December 2017 R=B-tF+=A=t-8
Depreciation and amortisation ~ T ER & 3 65,775 7 8,649 35,039 51 114,884
Capital expenditures BARX 5 450 - - 1,285 10 1,750
As at 31 December 2016 RZF—7"F+-A=1-H
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH N/A N/A
4 57,083 4 TiER TER 5,481 62,572
Impairment loss recognised FRERRAAERR N/A N/A
during the year - 726 - TER TER 9,352 10,078
Capital expendtures BARR N/A N/A
4 3,983 24 TEh TER = 4,011

Geographical information

72 HWEER
TR#ENEHR: ((FEEXRBIRE

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external
customers and (i) the Group’s current and non-current
assets. The geographical location of customers is based on
the location at which the services were provided or the goods
were delivered. The geographical location of the segment
assets is based on the physical location of the asset, in the
case of mining rights, the location of the operation to which

they are allocated.

Bz RiANKEZmE IR
BEEMEMR AR - RFMEM

& %2 PT B2 fHR AR 75 3 X

=]

ZEH

) 2

N nBEEMEMREREEER
FRAEEEE &) 2y - T ERAEHE R IR X A5 A
FEHLEGE 7
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEER(E\)
7.2 Geographical information (Continued) 72 #EER (H)

The Group’s operations are located in the following
geographical areas. The following table provides an analysis
of the Group’s revenue from external customers and assets
by geographical location:

REE 2 EBRIN A TR © TR
JIAEERMES D 2IREF I
m M EED:

Segment revenue from external

customers Segment assets

RENREF 22 BEKE P REE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tE —TRE —E—tF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT TER THT
Overseas =2l 3,928 2,997 - =
Hong Kong B - - - 370,000
The PRC th 464,673 253,007 5,581,679 2,633,724
468,601 256,004 5,581,679 3,003,724

7.3 Information about major customers 73 EREXEEFZEH

The following is an analysis of revenue from customers
contributing over 10% of total revenue.

VAT 7328 B B M5 42U 10% A E#Y
BEP WD

2017 2016

—=—+tF ZE—XF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET T

Customer A (Mining operation) BPA (FREFER) N/A!
55,537 @A

Customer B (Sale of security XFPB(HERETHMER) N/A!
technologies products) 48,749 TE A

Note:

1. The corresponding year’s revenue did not contribute over 10%
to the total sales of the Group.

Excepts for the customers stated above, there is no other
single customer contributing over 10% of total revenue.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 Bt2 —ZF—+F+—-H=1+—HIFFZF

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. REMRAK
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F&T
Interest on bank loans and other borrowings BARAERNEHRERZ
wholly repayable within five years RITERKEMEREZFIBE 82,267 39,189
Imputed interest on convertible bonds AIMBRES 2 EERE 39,099 535
121,366 39,724
9. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. BRATBHAIEE
Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging: BRPT1S T AT B 1R AEHNBR A T IR B R EE -
2017 2016
—E—+tfF A
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTEx FH&T
Auditors’ remuneration % 2D B & 1,080 900
Cost of inventories expensed TFERAS H 352,274 213,608
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  ¥1% - = MR IEITE 27,458 18,876
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration) ETIRAK(BREEEHE)
— Wages and salaries —TE&EEFS 27,602 14,573
— Retirement benefits contributions —iRONEFI R 2,188 750
Striping costs* SR BR KA - 175,336
Operating lease payments in respect of WREYE 2 KEHEHIE
offices premises 8,247 6,382
& Include in other operating expenses * Hi R EREhBiEnes
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10. EEM <
Remuneration of the directors disclosed pursuant to the Listing RIE T8 B & B8 A BEBI55383(1) Ik
Rules and Section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, BrESMEOT:
is as follows:
2017 2016
—ZE—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTEx FHET
Fees: Hwe:
Executive directors WITES - -
Independent non-executive directors BWYIEHITES 300 300
300 300
Other emoluments: Hinl < :
Executive directors: WITES:
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMEREVHZE 884 1,075
Contributions to pension schemes RS 35 16
Independent non-executive directors: B IEHITES:
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMEREYH= - -
919 1,091
1,219 1,391
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 Bt2 —ZF—+F+—-H=1+—HIFFZF

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 10. EEM<E (&)
For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no emolument HE-_ZT—tFRER-_ZE—X~"F+=A
was paid by the Group to the directors of the Company as an =t+—HLEFE AEETERAAFTE
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation EXNERM S ERREMNBASEE
for loss of office. MARY M2 RERERBBHEE - FA
MEEEREEMHE -
Retirement
Salaries and benefit scheme
Fees other benefits contributions
e FERHMEN BRI BT
017 2016 017 2016 2017 2016 017 2016
“E-tE “IRE “E-tf “I-RE ZE-tf ZZ-RE “E-tf 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tz T T T TET i T T
Executive directors YTES

Gao Yuan Xing BRE - - - 5 - - - 5
Qian Yi Dorg ¥R - = 364 30 17 16 381 36
Zhang JaKun FHH - - - - - - - =
Yang Ying Min EESS - = 520 480 18 - 538 480
Li Li Juan? TER - - - 240 - - - 240
- - 884 1,075 3 16 919 1,091

Independent non-executive Y FHTES

directors
Cheng Chak Ho 225 100 100 - - - - 100 100
Wiam Fong HEk 100 100 - - - . 100 100
Leung Kar Fai 228 100 100 - - - - 100 100
300 300 - - - - 300 300
1 Gao Yuan Xing resigned as executive director on 4 January 2016. L BRER-ZT—NF— ANBHIHTE
£

2 Li Li Juan resigned as executive director on 21 June 2017.
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10.

11.

134

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, remunerations
of all directors of the Company fall within HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000.

There were no arrangements under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2016: Nil).

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind paid to or for the executive
directors are generally emoluments paid or receivable in respect of
those persons’ other services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2016: two) directors, details for whose remuneration are set out in
Note 10 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining three
(2016: three) highest paid, non-director employees are as follows:

10.

11.

BEEME (F)
HE_Z—t&F#Fk=-_ZT—XF+=A
=+ BHLEFE - ARFEEEE MW
=78 7T 21,000,000/ 7T 2 & E A °

FAMEEANESFHREXRZHEH
SZRB(ZE—RF 8) -

AXRATEEINNIE RHREY
B —RARZEALTEARRE RSB
NAMEHEEA B E MR T e
Ys & 557 B

& & % M

FRAZBREFMHETRERE (=F
—AE WA EE BEZMEHERR
EXHEI0 B TR (ZF—AF:
B)HEEREHFMETZMEBEMT -

2017 2016

—E—+E ZE—RF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FHET

Salaries and other benefits e RHAEF 1,325 1,339
Mandatory provident fund contribution SAHIMEATES HIR 52 48
1,377 1,387

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, remunerations
of highest paid, non-director employees fall within HK$Nil to
HK$1,000,000.
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11.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
scheme administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiary in the PRC are
members of the state-sponsored retirement benefit scheme
organised by the relevant local government authority in the PRC.
The subsidiary is required to contribute, based on a certain
percentage of the basic salary of its employees, to the retirement
benefit scheme and has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions or postretirement benefits beyond the annual
contributions. The state-sponsored retirement benefit scheme
represent for the entire pension obligations payable to retired
employees.

The Group does not have any other pension schemes for its
employees in respect of its subsidiaries outside Hong Kong and
the PRC. In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the Group
did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2017 (2016: Nil) in respect of the retirement of its employees.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 25 May 2011 and will remain
in force for a period of 10 years from that date. The purpose of the
Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to the Eligible
Persons (as defined under the Scheme) as incentive or reward for
their contribution to the growth of the Group or Invested Entities (as
defined under the Scheme) and to provide the Group with a more
flexible means to reward, remunerate, compensate and/or provide
benefits to the Eligible Persons.

No share option had been granted, exercised, lapsed or was
cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

11.

BEFHM (&)

RAKERGE

REBRIEEB LD F480F &G 1E AT
S EBPIREERRBRIIEE ZESR
iRt ATREA 8 ([RESAE]) -
SRIESETE ) —EHBUETAETEZE
BHFRAKEE - RIBBESHE BER
HEBRARERABUIAZ5%METEIH
R MEFABBRAZ ERA30,00087T °
AT EIE T 2 KBRS -

ARBRFEMB AR 2EETEEH
#8757 R 4 B P A 7T B 2R B BRI AR R
BZRE -MBRARAARERBEZELRS
TZE T A DL RERARE MG S
BREEHRISN BEEEXNERERS
SRR B - BHKEBRIKEN & B
BERERKEEXNEZMEARE -

ZER B 2 R F S I P BRSO 2 P B
NAZBEBRIAEMEMERARSEE - AR
RAEERA RZT—+tF+=-A=+—
B NEEY ELEERAAEEMNEKR
FIARBB(ZE—RF8)-

B AHRRS
ARBREN-"F——FAA-_THAR
BZRBRERRNERETE (T5HE1))
PRI B RS+ FHRRAERE
Mot EERARAANRAEBRAL CE
EREE) ROBRE (FRABRERRK
EHAREYRIRERR (TR DS #E
REFELER Y AAKEREEELING
LA L2E - B3R - WE R SIRERATA
BEALe

HE-_Z—tF+-A=+—HILFE"
PR R R 1708 - RS (=
TRFE)-
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. 88X
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made since BN B F ARG HIEEE - Rl &5t
the Group incurred taxation losses for the year. Taxes on profits BANGHETIRE A B[R 2 FERT
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the prevailing rates w= A IB B R IRIR B AN - 28 RIE FIR
of tax based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices. RITH R E -
2017 2016
—E—+tF T —RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Current tax: BNEARR I8 -
PRC corporate income tax R B 1h SEATIS B 7,446 4
Deferred tax IRAEFIE (20,763) (9,525)
(13,317) 9,521)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before income HRASEEFANRSEHIEEE W&
tax using the statutory rates for the tax jurisdictions in which the BANGWETIRE A B[R 2 R
Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled is as follows: wAMNHIBERERIR A AN 2B REflE
WITMEGTE -
2017 2016
—E—+E ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Loss before income tax Br PT1S 1 A B 18 (194,523) (369,917)
Tax at the statutory tax rates BAEMERGTE 2MIE (32,096) (91,138)
Tax effect of income not taxable BARBBRAZHBTE
for tax purpose (9,817) (13,341)
Tax effect of expense not AR 2 RIS E
deductible for tax purpose 23,639 90,585
Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses RIERRIEEIE 2 B & 4,957 4,373
Tax credit for the year RER 2 HIEE R (13,317) (9,521)
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13. DIVIDENDS 13.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

14. LOSS PER SHARE 14.

(a) Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share amount is based on
the net loss for the year of approximately HK$145,774,000
(2016: HK$324,425,000) attributable to equity holders of the
Company, and weighted average of 21,541,537,000 (2016:
19,952,355,030) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted loss per share

The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume
the conversion of the Company’s outstanding convertible
bonds since their assumed exercise would result in a
decrease in loss per share during the year ended 31
December 2017 and 2016.

RE

EETREHBE_Z—LF+-A
=t HLEFERNEMRBRE (ZF
—NEFE) o

ST
(a)

(b)

B8

BREAREE
FREKREBETDIREARQ RS
BHEAELRAEFEEBEEREFHEY
145,774,000 T (Z & — <N F:
324,425,000 70) R F A B BT E
38 I RE S 15 8k21,541,537,0004%
(ZZF—X% :19,952,355,0308% ) =t

i
= o
It

BRBEER

AREESREEEERYERRER
ARRHARITEARRES - ThlAR
BRERAT 7% 5 Al R BB 55 5 B B
EELHFR-_TE-RF+_H
=T BILEFENSRERRD -
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

138

15. Y% BERRE

Furniture &
Mining Fixtures
Structure and Leasehold Motor
Buildings Plantand  Improvement Vehicle  Construction
RRER Machinery HEME G- in Progress Total
REF BERBE £ £ERAE EEIR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THT THT
Cost 7%
At 1 January 2016 R=ZZ—~"§—A—H 208,349 175,826 536 21,936 589,761 996,408
Additions NE 54 21 - 28 3,908 4,011
Disposals HE - - - (1,095) - (1,005)
Exchange realignment EREE (13,527) (11,414) - (046) (25,869) (51,756)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE-R"E+ZA=+—-HK
1 January 2017 —Z—t%—-f—H 194,876 164,433 536 19,923 567,800 947,568
Additions NE 1,777 3,284 - 2,000 352 7,413
Disposals HE - - - (1,344) - (1,344)
Acquisition of subsidiary gk B AR 56,223 275,464 - 4,328 - 336,015
Acquisition of assets through BRKERBARIKEEE
acquisition subsidiary - - - 93 111,183 111,276
Exchange realignment EHAR 17,026 23,666 - 1,206 32,675 74,573
At 31 December 2017 R-F—+F+-A=+—H 269,902 466,847 536 26,206 712,010 1,475,501
Accumulated depreciation and ~ Eif i E
impairment
At 1 January 2016 R=F—"§—A—H 101,256 133,988 536 21,492 193,938 451,210
Charge for the year FRMB 9,790 8,757 - 329 - 18,876
Disposals HE - - - (1,040) - (1,040)
Exchange realignment Tk (7,011) (9,089) - (933) - (17,033)
At 31 December 2016 and RIZ-—RE+-A=t-HR
1 January 2017 —ZT—+#—-f—-H 104,035 133,656 536 19,848 193,938 452,013
Charge for the year FERMk 10,746 16,074 - 638 - 27,458
Disposals HE - - - (1,058) - (1,058)
Exchange realignment ERAR 8,271 10,718 - 979 - 19,968
At 31 December 2017 R-F—+F+-A=+—H 123,052 160,448 536 20,407 193,938 498,381
Carrying amount HREE
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+F+=-A=1+—H 146,850 306,399 - 5,799 518,072 977,120
At 31 December 2016 RZE—7R"E¥+ZA=+—H 90,841 30,777 - 75 373,862 495,555
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15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$510.9 million
(2016: approximately HK$489.3 million) and approximately
HK$115.8 million (2016: Nil) were allocated to the Molybdenum
Mining cash-generating unit (“Molybdenum Mining CGU") and
Potassium Mining cash-generating unit (‘Potassium Mining CGU”)
respectively.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group determined the recoverable
amounts of Molybdenum Mining CGU and Potassium Mining
CGU based on value in use calculation. That calculation used
cash flows projections based on financial budgets as approved by
management covering a 5-year period, and at a discount rate of
11% and 20% (2016: 12% and Nil) for Molybdenum Mining CGU
and Potassium Mining CGU respectively with reference to the
valuation performed by an independent external valuer as at 31
December 2017. No impairment is considered necessary to provide
(2016: Nil).

As at 31 December 2017, buildings with carrying amount of
approximately HK$16,428,000 (2016: Nil) were pledged for a bank
loan.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Prepaid lease payments represent cost paid for medium-term
leasehold land in the PRC. The costs are amortised over the
leasehold period of 15 years and 45 years respectively.

15.

16.

M- BERRE (F)

W_ZE—t&E+-_F=+—H XEEY
¥ WE & & 2 BRE{E 4510,900,0007%
7L (= — 75 4F : #7489,300,0005% 7T ) K&
#9115,800,0008 T (ZE—R~F: &) H
RO EHBRSELREMN ([HERSE
£86 ) RIFRABESELSMN ([FR
CRASELEMN]) -

R_ZT—t&F+_A=+—8 A&EBEZ
AFEAEErEETERRSELEMN Y
B eE BRTEFERATEREERE
HERRERFH M BEERIELAR
eREEA RERRSELEMEAR
AEBESCEEBMZARED I A11% K
20% (ZZ—RNF 12% R E) WL EF
VHNEEERN —E—+tE+ A =1+—
RETHHEE -2 HAELRER
B(ZE—RFE)o

R-ZZE—+FE+-A=+—H BREEHY
16,428,000/ ST R EE (=T — /1 F &)
EEMIES—HEBITERNER-

ANHEERE
FENAERBIERLN P E 2P HHEE T
RN © 5 BAR AN Bl IR T & HA15 R A5 8 o

2017 2016

—B-tF A

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHEx FHE T

Net carrying amount BREFE

At 1 January Rn—A—H 52,750 62,128
Addition through acquisition of subsidiaries R B A Rl TS 21,254 -
Amortisation for the year FEEH (5,636) (5,595)
Exchange realignment bE 5 3 & 4,606 (3,783)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 72,974 52,750

As at 31 December 2017, prepaid lease payments with carrying
amount of approximately HK$21,997,000 (2016: Nil) were pledged
for a bank loan.

R-_E—+E+-_A=+—H KEE
4921,997,0008 T EKAERE (==
—NF B BEBES —HBTERAE
fRe
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17.
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MINING RIGHTS 17. HRIERE
2017 2016
—Z—+F N
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Costs: AR
At 1 January Rn—H—H 3,096,436 3,311,386
Addition through acquisition of subsidiaries FEIBUHEHT B A Bl 2,383,855 =
Exchange realignment PE H A% 233,240 (214,950)
At 31 December RT+ZA=+—H 5,713,531 3,096,436
Accumulated amortisation and BFtEERREREE:
impairment loss:
At 1 January Rn—A—H 2,100,133 2,206,999
Amortisation provided for the year INF SRS 50,569 38,101
Exchange realignment PE H S 160,239 (144,967)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—8 2,310,941 2,100,133
Carrying amount: BREME
At 31 December R+ZA=+—8 3,402,590 996,303

Molybdenum Mine

The Group had an exploitation rights in respect of a molybdenum
mine located at Xi Ban Cha Gou, Huanglongpu Village, Shimen
Town, Luonan County, Shaanxi Province, the PRC (‘Shaanxi
Molybdenum Mine”) issued by Land and Resources Bureau of
Shaanxi Province, the PRC. The exploitation rights were allocated
to the Group’s Molybdenum Mining CGU.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group determined the
recoverable amounts of Molybdenum Mining CGU based on value
in use calculation. That calculation used cash flows projections
based on financial budgets as approved by management covering
a 5-year period, and at a discount rate of 11% (2016: 12%) with
reference to the valuation performed by an independent external
valuer as at 31 December 2017. As the recoverable amount of the
Molybdenum Mining CGU was higher than the carrying amount, no
impairment loss was recognised as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
Nil).
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17. MINING RIGHTS (Continued)

17. BRI (#\)

Potassium Mine

The Group had an exploitation rights in respect of a Potassium
mine located Shaanxi Province, the PRC (“Shaanxi Potassium
Mine”) issued by Land and Resources Bureau of Shaanxi Province,
the PRC. The exploitation rights were allocated to the Group’s
Potassium Mining CGU.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group determined the recoverable
amounts of Potassium Mining CGU based on value in use
calculation. That calculation used cash flows projections based
on financial budgets as approved by management covering a
5-year periods, and at a discount rate of 20% with reference to
the valuation performed by an independent external valuer as at
31 December 2017. As the recoverable amount of the Potassium
Mining CGU was higher than the carrying amount, no impairment
loss was recognised as at 31 December 2017.

HRARE
AEEHEATERAEBRLERERLRN
hEIRRTEE M RO ([REFEAE])
BhoUHGRE - DRESETARERE
AEREELEM-

R-B—+F+-A=1+—H XEER
AERBEtEFEERRABRCELSE
fizAEeR - EAFEERTERE
EEMENRERFR M BERERED
MR 2R 8 TR - % BRI R20% Y 2 E
MANEEERMR =T —tF A=+ —
BETHEEFE - AR ROBREE
EBEMzANESBESNEEE 8K
T+ F+ A=+ HAWEERRES

B
18. GOODWILL 18. A&
HK$'000
FHET
Cost: RN
At 1 January 2016, at 31 December 2016 and R=ZZE—RF—H—H8"
at 1 January 2017 RZZE—RF+ZA=+—8BK

—T—+%—HF—H 13,403
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B BT B A ) 55,728
At 31 December 2017 R-ZB—+F+_-_H=+—8H 69,131

As at 31 December 2017, the amounts of goodwill were allocated
to Molybdenum Mine CGU, Trading of chemical products
cash-generating unit (“Chemical Products CGU”) and Sale of
security technologies products cash-generating unit (“Security
Technologies Products CGU”) (“CGUS”) of approximately HK$13.4
million, HK$12.9 million and HK$42.8 million respectively.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group conducted impairment review
on goodwill attributable to above CGUs at the end of the reporting
period by reference to its estimated recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of the CGUs has been determined based on
a value-in-use calculation. No impairment loss was recognised
in respect of those CGUs for the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: Nil).

RZZE—+FE+_A=+—H BHELHE
PETHBERSELEN BR(LEER
AeEdsEM ((ME2EMREELEM])
MHERTRMERRSEEEM ([HHE
ReRWERBRcEAEM]) ([ZER
SELEM]) -2 5 #13,400,000% 7T -
12,900,000 7T, }242,800,000/ 7T ©

N_ZE—t&F+_A=+—H AEEAR
MEHAR MR SESBMNSE AR
Al EeEETHERENE 2SHE
EEBENZ Al EEEZAEAEETE
BEX - BE_ZT—tF+ZA=+—8H1
FE HERZEESCEABEMNERRE
BE(ZZ—XRE &)
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18.

19.
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GOODWILL (Continued)

The calculation used in the cash flows projections was based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a 5 years
period, and the discount rate of Molybdenum Mine CGU was 11%
(2016: 12%), Chemical Products CGU was 22% and Security
Technologies Products CGU was 19%.

INVESTMENT DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2017, balance of investment deposits comprise
of:

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group entered into
a subscription agreement with Shaanxi Ding Jin Mining Company
Limited (“Ding Jin”), pursuant to which the Group is eligible to
subscribe for the promissory notes issued by Ding Jin. The principal
amount of the promissory notes was HK$500 million and carried
at interest of HK$100 million payable on the maturity date, which
is 5 years from subscription. The promissory note is secured by an
iron mine indirectly owned as to 96% by Ding Jin. Pursuant to the
subscription agreement, the Group has the right to acquire the Iron
Mine should the subscriber failed the settlement of the promissory
note to the Group. The Iron Mine is located at Zi Yang Xian, An
Kang City, Shan Xi Province, the PRC covering approximately 13.54
km?.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group discussed
with Ding Jin to consider the potential possibility to acquire the Iron
Mine held by Ding Jin given the condition that () Ding Jin obtained
all the necessary approval documents to operate the Iron Mine,
including but not limited to the exploitation right and environment
approval issued by the relevant PRC authorities; and (i) the
satisfaction of due diligence performed by the Group’s mining team,
in particular the evaluation of reserve of the Iron Mine. Accordingly,
the Group and Ding Jin agreed two years period for both parties
to satisfy the conditions layout by the Group. The consideration
will be based on the valuation to be performed by an independent
valuer upon the completion of the conditions, however, the principal
amounts of the promissory note together with the interests owed by
Ding Jin to the Group will be used as part of the consideration for
the acquisition of the Iron Mine in future, but will be refundable to
the Group in the case that the conditions not met. Accordingly, the
carrying amounts of promissory note receivable were classified as
investment deposits as at 31 December 2016.
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ERRE R FH O EEERIEL M
BHESELAEN EBEEERRESESE
BUMHEEREENERBRSEESMZ
AR ES R A11% (ZE—RF:12% ) »
22% % 19% °

REZS
R-T—t#+-A=+—80 REARS
HEHE:

HE-Z——F+t-A=+—HILFE"
AEFEERASSBEEGR AT ([SR2])
FIRBHZE B AEEARESS
T z2Ak BB AL EBRESER
500,000,0007% 7t - 3 ff #5100,000,000/%5
TTHE - ZEREER (Al RERTmAS
EH)EMN EAHREERRESHEEFI
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21.

20. PREPAYMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF 20. WS A R FRN IR
SUBSIDIARIES
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group entered BE_Z—X"F+-_A=+—HLFE"
into a sale and purchase agreement with two independent third 7K £ [E F1 #2900,000,0007% 7T £ X (B U BB
parties for the acquisition of 65% equity interests in Wealth Pioneer Wealth Pioneer Group Limited X E K&~
Group Limited and its subsidiaries (“Wealth Pioneer Group”), at 7] ([Wealth Pioneer%s | )65%H) % # &2
the consideration of HK$900 million. The principal asset of the W Z B E =58 E e Wealth
Wealth Pioneer Group is the Potassium Feldspar Mine located in Pioneerse BIME E & E A AT BHRAE
Shaanxi Province, the PRC. As at 31 December 2016, the Group R RAE-R_E—AF+_A=1+—
prepaid approximately HK$845.7 million for the consideration. The B - 7R & B 5t K & 78 7 49845,700,000/7%8
acquisition was completed on 19 January 2017. T WEEER-_ZTE—tF—A+NLHERE
Bk o
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21, BREEE
Contract
backlog
RFERE L
HK$’000
FHT
Cost: B
As at 1 January 2017 R-ZT—+F—H—H -
Addition through acquisition of subsidiaries FEIBULFEMT B A A% 468,321
Exchange realignment b H AR 18,951
As at 31 December 2017 RZBE—+F+_HA=1+—H 487,272
Accumulated amortisation: Hot#sy:
As at 1 January 2017 RZE—+tF—H—H =
Amortisation provided for the year RNEFEHRE 31,221
Exchange realignment ME H 38 B 1,264
As at 31 December 2017 RZTE—+tF+HA=+—H 32,485
Carrying amount: BREE:
As at 31 December 2017 RZTE—+tF+HA=+—H 454,787
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21.

22,

144

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, intangible assets of
approximately HK$468.3 million were acquired through acquisition
of Gold Pearl Group, represent contract backlog with 5 years useful
life. The amounts of intangible assets were allocated to Security
Technologies Products CGU.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group conducted impairment
review on intangible assets attributable to Security Technologies
Products CGU at the end of the reporting period by reference to
its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of the
Security Technologies Products CGU has been determined based
on a value-in-use calculation. No impairment loss was recognised
in respect of the Security Technologies Products CGU for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

The calculation used in the cash flows projections was based on
financial budgets as approved by management covering a 5 years
period, the discount rate of Security Technologies Products CGU
was 19% and the estimated general growth rate was 3%.

21.

| EE (#)
HE-_Z—+HF+-_A=+—RHIEE"
ERRECDHEBRRENERLEED
468,300,000/ 7T * AE A F A F A FEH
BEXEHN BEFEENSEIRTRE
RMEMBRSEES-

RZB—+F+-A=+—RH KxEER
BERRSERLRMERRSEL BN
ZEFTAIRE S ER R L RMASELR
NGBV EEETRELDRE HERRT
BRMERREELEM K ESELRA
EREEAEEE -HE_T—tF+=
A=+ —BLEFE SELRTRMER
ReEEBMERBERRE-

RenERAERNGELERERE]R
ERRERFHZMBBRERED - HER
REMEMBREELEM 2R EXR19%
Kfbat —RIERER3% °

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 22, EWmEHESE
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHT T T
Current finance lease receivables BNEAfE W mb & FH & 1,314 =
Non-current finance lease receivables JERNHRFE R E T & 5,077 =
6,391 -
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22. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22, EREmERE (&)
The Group’s finance lease receivables are as follows: AEBZEKMERENT
2017 2016
—E—tfF —Z—RF

Present value Total Present value Total
of minimum minimum of minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
receivables receivables receivables receivables
BIEEK RIEEKR IEEKR {EEH
HERE HELE MERE HELSE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER AT THT
Not later than 1 year TNER—F 1,314 1,705 = -
Later than 1 year not later than 5 years EBR—FETERLE 5,077 5,908 = -
6,391 7,613 - -
Less: total future interest income B RRF B WA 85 (1,222) =
Present value of lease obligations HEEARAE 6,391 -

The interest rate inherent in the leases was fixed at the contract
date for the entire lease term. The interest rates of the above
finance leases was 6% per annum.

The finance lease receivables as at 31 December 2017 were neither
past due nor impaired.

The terms of finance leases entered into ranged to 5 years.

EEAHANRERENXEER A KA
HERNKF AEBEREZFNES
6% °

RZZE—+F+_A=+—HZEKME
THE B A B SORE

BRIV zEEBREREFHNFAEF-
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23.

24,
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—tFFZA=1—HILFE

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS HtBKEE
2017 2016
—E— i —E R
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT

Analysed as: DT :

Bai Shan Promissory Note B L& S E i - 300,000
- 300,000

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group has
disposed 25% equity interest in Rui Sui Kuang Ye Company Limited
in return for a promissory note receivable with a face value of
HK$500 million. The maturity date is 3 years from the issue date of
the promissory notes. The amount of HK$200 million and HK$300
million were settled during the year ended 31 December 2016 and
2017 respectively.

HE-_ZT—=6+-A=+—RHIEE"
REBLE TIHBEEBR A F25%A A
T 2% » 30 45 T {E500,000,0007% 7T 2 & Uk
EAER RN ER BB AREEITEH
#EEF=4F - 200,000,0007% 7T }2.300,000,000
BLZHRBEDIRBE_ZE—RERZ
T—+F+-A=+—RHLEFEHEG-

INVENTORIES 24. FE
2017 2016
—E—+tHF T —RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T
Raw material R4 R 39,235 13,481
Work in progress TR 12,047 2,355
Finished goods YR 421,358 397,988
472,640 413,824

The cost of inventories recognised as expense during the year in
respect of mining operations, trading of chemical products and
sale of security technologies products were totally approximately
HK$352,274,000 (2016: mining operations HK$213,608,000). No
written down of inventories was recognised in profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: HK$8,416,000).
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25. TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES 25. EWERAR KR EE
2017 2016
—E—+F —ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FH&TT
Trade and bill receivables EWER R R EE 66,660 8,052

An aging analysis of the trade and bill receivables at the end of the
reporting period, based on invoice date is as follows:

RBREPREE R BEERRERRER

HEIFEZREE DTN T :

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FTET FHET

0-30 days 0-30H 3,065 3,583
31-60 days 31-60H 4,772 -
61-90 days 61-90H - -
91-180 days 91-180H 44,596 4,469
Over 180 days but within one year #180B 1B —F R 14,227 =
66,660 8,052
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25.
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TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The aging of trade and bill receivables which are past due but not
impaired are as follows:

5 BUWERMRKREE (R)

B 18 HA B M R (B 2 1B WU BR TR R SR AR BR e 40
T

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTET FHT

31-60 days 31-60H 4,772 -
61-90 days 61-90H - -
91-180 days 91-180H 44,596 4,469
Over 180 days but within one year #180B B —F R 14,227 =
63,595 4,469

For the year ended 31 December 2017, trade debtors that were
not impaired nor past due related to customers for whom there was
no recent history of default. Based on experience, management
believe that no impairment loss shall be recognised as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered recoverable (2016: Nil).

The Directors consider that the fair values of trade receivables are
not materially different from their carrying value because these
amounts have short maturity period on their inception.

For the Group’s mining operation, sales of molybdenum
concentrates and trading of chemical products are largely on cash
basis with no credit terms being granted to customers, except for
sizable customers with good credit history, the Group will allow a
credit term 30 days.

For the Group’s sale of security technologies products are largely
on cash basis with O — 180 days credit terms being granted to
customers, expect for sizeable customers with good credit history,
the Group will allow a credit term more than 180 days but within
one year.
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26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26. FEMNRIE RERHEMEWRRK
RECEIVABLES
As at 31 December 2017, included in balance of prepayments, R_F—tF+=—A=+—H" FBFZE"
deposits and other receivables were (i) prepayment for purchase of Re kEMERREHRBEE)BEFEZE
inventories of approximately HK$196,115,000 (2016: approximately < FRIE 49196,115,000/8 7T ( T — 7K 4F ¢
HK$159,404,000. #9159,404,000/8 7T.) °
27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT 27. RERREEEY
2017 2016
—Z—+F —F N\
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F&T
Pledged bank deposits BHEFIEITER 106,220 -
Cash and bank balances Re RIBITHER 56,097 596,003
162,317 596,003
Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from RITEHREFLMIGHNEN F0.01%E
0.01% to 0.35% per annum (31 December 2016: 0.01% to 0.35%:T B (ZE—A"FE+=-A=+—8:
0.35%). 0.01%%20.35% ) °
The pledged bank deposit carry interest at the rate of 1.95% have B RITFERIRFE R E1.95%: 8 B
been pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the FIERE TASERITRE 2 EiRe
Group.
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—tFFZA=1—HILFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. R
Number Nominal
of shares value
RH&HE HE
Notes ‘000 HK$’000
BT T FHT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.016 each tHxﬁTﬁO 016/ T 2 T/l
At 1 January 2016, RZE—X"&—H—A8"
at 31 December 2016, \\_2 NFE+ZA=+—8"
at 1 January 2017 and RZZ—+tF—A—HBK
31 December 2017 RZE—tF+-HA=+—8H 31,250,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BITRHE:
At 1 January 2016 F\Z%FE_/‘*\EE_H_E 19,902,616 318,441
Issuance of subscription shares BETRER G @) 1,654,930 26,480
At 31 December 2016 and RZZE—R"F+-A=+—8BK
at 1 January 2017 —E—t+F—H—H 21,557,546 344,521
Repurchases of shares A EI ) (b) (62,160) (995)
At 31 December 2017 R-_ZE—+F+_A=+—H 21,495,386 343,926
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The movements in the Company’s share capital are summarized as
follows:

(@  On 8 December 2016, the Company entered into a share
subscription agreement pursuant to which the share
subscriber has agreed to subscribe and the Company has
agreed to issue and allot for up to 1,654,929,577 new shares
at the subscription price of HK$0.142 per subscription share.
The share subscription was completed on 29 December
2016 and the subscription shares were fully subscribed.
1,654,929,577 ordinary share was issued by the Company
upon the completion of the subscription and the net
proceeds received from the subscription was approximately
HK$235 million and will be used for general working capital of
the Group and/or financing any future acquisitions.

All new shares issued ranked pari passu with the existing
shares in all respects.

(b)  On 25 September 2017, 26 September 2017, 28 September
2017 and 12 October 2017, the Company bought back
shares through Grand Investment (Securities) Limited,
pursuant to which the Directors have agreed to share
buyback, and the Company has agreed to buy back up
to 30,180,000 shares at market price of HK$0.1592 per
shares; 7,650,000 shares at market price of HK$0.1593 per
shares; 12,330,000 shares at market price of HK$0.1622
per shares and 12,000,000 shares at HK$0.1610 per shares
respectively. The shares were cancelled in the stock market
on 6 October 2017 and 18 October 2017 respectively.

28. MA ()
ARFZBARHIRMT

R-ZBE—XNE+-ANB &XAA
RN RBRE R B BRHA
BEACRAEREBEAQRCDRE
1T R FR % % 3#1,654,929,577 % #
B 1h - REE A S RRBER7H0.142
BT - BORER T —AF+=
BZt+hB=l BERERDESR
FRE-THRABEE®E ~Q0A
%% 171,654,929,577IF LR B A
REEEREMAMERIBFEENA
235,000,000/ JTIF #5 B A AN £ [ Y
—MBEBEAR AR EBKEMR
B ETHREE S -

MBS RITHROBRARMNNE
TEBHERRFHAL

RZE—+tFNA=Z+HB -=Z
—+FhLhA-+A~"B - —T—+4F
hAZ+NBR-_ZE—+&+A
TZH - ARBERBREFERE (F
HF)ERATEERD BILHLEER
EROEBEmMARARE D BIAT
{8 & %0.1592/% Jt i [230,180,000
& A% 4 ~ LA T {8 & AR0.15937 7T 8
[17,650,0000% f% 13+ BA Th B & B
0.1622/%8 JTBE [B112,330,0000% A%
5 R LA E & /%0.1610/% 7t i [
12,000,0000% i 17 ° &% F /2 19 7 Bl A
—E—tFT+AANEEZZE—tF
+ A+ \BREEMISEHE -
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

During the year, the Company repurchased its own ordinary shares

28. A (&)

FR RNRAERBEBMERZIMARRA

through The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as follows: AIFTREE B L@ T -
Number of Highest Lowest Aggregate
ordinary shares price per price per  consideration
repurchased share share paid

2EE

Month of repurchase BE A7 EEREE BEERRE EEERRE #EARE
HKS HKS HK$'000
BT BT THL
September 2017 ZT—tENA 50,160 0.172 0.135 8,049
October 2017 “2—tE+A 12,000 0.163 0.150 1,939
62,160 9,988

All shares repurchased were cancelled during the year.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 29. ATERES

2017 2016
—ZE—tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&TT

Convertible bonds with principal amount of: AREFEM TR R ES:
HK$250,000,000 (CB A) 250,000,0007% 7t ( AT fE55A ) 246,857 243,838
HK$98,838,000 (CB B) 98,838,000/ 7T, ( AJ#2AZ EHB) 97,829 96,633
344,686 340,471

On 21 December 2016 and 29 December 2016, the Company
issued unsecured convertible bonds with principal amount of
HK$98,828,000 (the “CB B”) and HK$250,000,000 (the “CB A”)
respectively. The maturity date of the CB B and CB A are 20
December 2018 and 28 December 2018 respectively. The CB
B and CB A is interest bearing at 10% per annum and payables
arrears at first anniversary and upon its maturity dates. The CB B
and CB A holders have the rights to convert the CB B and CB A
into ordinary shares of the Company at any time and from time to
time between the date of issue of the CB B and CB A and up to
respectively maturity date, at the initial conversion price of HK$0.15
(the “Conversion Price”), subject to adjustment as set out and
in accordance with the terms and conditions in the instrument
constituting the CB B and CB A.

RZE—RFE+_A=Z+—HEZZ—~
F+—A=-+hB RRARDRETEAS
%A 598,828,000/ 7T ([ I PR EHB | ) &
250,000,000/ 7T ([ AT#AREHA ]) 2 3K
AR E S - TR RESFBR AT RKRES
AZEIHBES R A= —\F+=-A=+H
E—ZE—N\E+=-A=+/N\B @ik Es
BN A2 A% (& H A 1% F F R10%s 20 B
RE—RFREIEA D B c R HRARE
FBR AR ESARITANEE A EIHE
I Z BR  ATR R B SBR A R EHAZ
BHH AGRERER R TRIZZ R (E0.15
Pe T ([HRRR(E ) #% AT R AR (B 5B e 1] #2 A%
EHFAEIRBARAR] 2 LA - IR E A
BIEBK AT R ESFBR AT R ESAZ X
BRTE R R R EL AR
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

The fair values of the liability component and the equity conversion
component were determined at the issuance of the convertible

154

bonds. The fair value of the liability component, include in current
financial liabilities, was calculated using a market interest rate
for an equivalent non-convertible bond. The residual amount,
representing the value of the equity conversion component, is
included in shareholders’ equity. The convertible bonds recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position are calculated as

follows:

20, AARES (&)

BESOREEEBREON R FERAR
BEFBTREE AESINOQFE (G
ARBPEEE) KRB FEIFAHRRIESTK
MISMEETE - RrE 5 (RERERE D
EE) FFARRER - R & IR R
R AR E S TR AT A& :

CBA CBB Total
ARRESRA TBRRESB st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T T FHET T
At 1 January 2016 and RZE—R"FEF—HA—ABXK
proceeds from issue BT 50R 250,000 98,838 348,838
Equity components [i& e 58 (6,380) (2,522) (8,902)
Liability components afEHs 243,620 96,316 339,936
Imputed interest charged HEF B 218 317 535
As at 31 December 2016 and RZZE—R"F+=ZA=+—H
at 1 January 2017 MR =ZF—+F—H—H 243,838 96,633 340,471
Imputed interest charged HERN R 28,019 11,080 39,099
Interest charged FERX (25,000) (9,884) (34,884)
As at 31 December 2017 RZZE—tF+=A=1+—H 246,857 97,829 344,686

Interest expenses on the convertible bonds is calculated using the
effective interest method by applying the effective interest rate of

11.5% to the liability component.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2—=Z

—tFFZA=F—HILFE

30. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 30. EXEHRERRE

Mining
rights
RIERE
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—XR"FE—H—H 301,801
Credit to profit or loss AR (9,525)
Exchange realignment b H AR (19,164)

At 31 December 2016 and RZE—R"F+ZA=+—HK
1 January 2017 RZZ—+t&—H—H 273,112
Addition through acquisition of subsidiaries FE BB B A A% 121,818
Credit to profit or loss FFAE = (20,763)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 58 FE 20,060
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+HA=+—8H 394,227
The Group did not have any significant unprovided deferred tax R_Z—+tF+-_A=1+—H AEEHE

31.

liabilities at 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

FRBARBHEECHEBEE (ZF—X
FE) -

TRADE AND BILL PAYABLES 31. EFRARAKEE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ET T
0-30 days 0-30H 39,484 3,490
31-60 days 31-60H 19,906 694
61-90 days 61-90H - 971
91-180 days 91-180H 58,872 388
Over 180 days but within one year BISOHER —F R 66,597 65,056
184,859 70,599

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and bill
payable approximate to their fair values at the end of reporting

period.

EEZRR BARALREENEEEER
RBEHREER Z A FERE-
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32.

33.

156

PROVISION FOR ENVIRONMENTAL AND
RESOURCES TAX

—tFFZA=1—HILFE

32.

BRRERBRE

2017 2016

—ZE—+tHF —ZE—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Environmental and resources tax RIR KRB IRT - 88,666

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any
environmental and resources tax (2016: HK$88,666,000
(RMB80,000,000)) arising upon renewal of its mining license.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

All of the Group’s other payables and accruals are expected to be
settled or recognised as income within one year or are repayable on
demand.

Included in other payables and accruals are amounts of
HK$24,579,000 (2016: HK$22,802,000) due to the minority
shareholders and directors of the Group’s subsidiary which are
unsecured, interest free and repayment on demand.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of other payables
and accruals approximate to their fair values at the end of reporting
period.
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Zliﬁlﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁ R e B R IR
R—FABEREBRBA  HARER

&i&-

Aﬂﬁ
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@Mﬂ*"? 2 %MZE“ BRERESZK

24,579,000/ 7T ( ==& —734 : 22,802,000
HBIT) ~§A%klé)3%$ﬁﬁ£€?ﬁﬁ EF S B —&

ZRENAEER

EER/EMENFREAER ZREE
HENGERHEAEEAZAFERS



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #t2 —ZF—+F+—-H=4+—HIFFZF

34. BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS 4. RITERRHEMEE
2017 2016
—E—+tE —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Interest bearing bank loans, FFTEEEARITERRK
secured and other borrowings HihfE &
Current portion BN HAE6 5 596,343 361,167
Non-current portion JEBNHRER 251,321 -
847,664 361,167
As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s interest-bearing bank loans RZZT—tF+_A=+—8H KXEE
were carried at effective interest rates from 5% to 12% per annum BRITERZEBRFEFNEN F5%E12%
and were secured by (i) guarantees from corporate companies; (i) LAVEERR 2R (KB 2 BE
pledged of property, plant and equipment (note 15) and prepaid B (M sE15) R E U & 518 (MY &%
lease payments (note 16); (i) guarantees from subsidiaries of 16) : (iVANE BB AR RWB AR 2
the Group and the subsidiary’s minority shareholders; and (iv) FREZRRER: RiVEREZERAG Z
guarantee from the ultimate control party. iR
As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s interest bearing bank loans RZE—AF+ZA=1+—80 KEEFE
were carried at effective interest rates from 10.8% to 12% per HITERZEBRFENENF10.8%212%
annum and were secured by () guarantees from a subsidiary of the LAG) AE BB AR KB AR 2 D8
Group and the subsidiary’s minority shareholders; and (i) guarantee =R R R(i) REERAE ZER
from the ultimate holding company. EHE IR -
35. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 35. KEMHEHRE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments/receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

RBEEEE R AEBEAE R T 5 HME
B2 PR G S E R RIEHE S
R U R A

2017 2016
—ZT—tF —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHExT FHE T

The Group as leasee REBEREMEA
Within one year —&FRN 6,246 6,727
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EZERF (BREEEME) 9,288 10,411
After the fifth year FRF® 16,404 16,431
31,938 33,569

The Group as leasor REBEREMEA
Within one year —FR 7,407 -
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EZERF (BREEEME) 7,407 =
14,834 =
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group has the following balances and transactions
with related parties:

(a)

(b)

158

At the end of the reporting period, the Group entered into the
following balances with related parties:

36. 5@

BEALRS

BRI ESEMBHRREMAT O MNES
S REBEBHEALTHFEE N NEHR

RS

(a)

Amounts due
from related parties

RIBEREAEER  AEEEFRIE
ATHEE TSR

Amounts due
to related parties

EWREEEALRE ENBREEALRE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—B-tF T F Bt =T K7
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT T FBx FAT
Related parties (note 33) A R4 A £ (FI733) - - 24,579 22,802

The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in
cash. No guarantee has been given or received. No expenses
have been recognised in the period for bad or doubtful debts
in respect of the amounts due from related parties.

Compensation of key management
personnel

Remuneration for key management personnel, including
amount paid to the Company’s directors and certain of the
highest paid employees, as disclosed in notes 10 and 11 to
the consolidated financial statements is follows:

(b)

AREEFASBRALGAREE
B o W AR TR ERER AR
BEREREREALREZRE
ARRERF -

FTEEEAB ZHMH

BANER A B IS R M FE10 R 11 BT #2
B XEEBEABZEM (BEMST
ARRIZEERETRERFHEEZ
FRIE) AT -

2017 2016

—Z2—+F —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FH&T

Short-term employee benefits EHEBEET 2,509 2,564
Mandatory Provident Fund contribution 3@l A TE & % 87 64
2,596 2,628
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37. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

37.

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group

did not have any material non-cash transactions.

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(@) Acquisition of 100% equity interest in

Gold Pearl Investment Limited and its

subsidiaries

On 7 September 2017, the Group completed the acquisition
of 100% equity interests in Gold Pearl Investment Limited
and its subsidiaries (“Gold Pearl Group”) at a consideration of

HK$430,000,000 in cash.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Gold

FEIRERS
REEZE_ZE—+tFR-_ZT—X F+=A
=t BHLEFER AEEWETREK
ERERG-

W B B /8 2 E

(@) WIEESLHKRREARLTIR
HK B A T 2100% % 24~ #E
e
R-E—tFANALH REETK
WESEHKIEERR QR LEKB
NE ([£2T]) 2100% M AN
R & A&430,000,0005% 7T - AR £ X
e

SPREERKER R ZARAIE

Pearl Group as at date of acquisition were as follows: ENBEZATENT :
HK$'000
F&IT
Property, plant and equipment L ER Y e 28,029
Finance lease receivable ERRERE 6,260
Intangible assets EBAE 487,272
Inventories 75 23,778
Account receivables FE U BR TR 18,785
Other receivables, deposit and prepayments H Rk RS R T IR 7,450
Cash and bank balances e RIRITEERR 1,507
Trade payables FEATBR X (37,822)
Other payable and accruals FEET IR (26,231)
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIEEE (121,818)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRAFEFEZ AT #RFE EEAE 387,210
Goodwil ES 42,790
Total consideration satisfied by cash NHR ez BRE 430,000
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WEEA 2B RLFE
Cash and cash equivalent acquired BWE2RERREEEY 1,507
Cash consideration ReRE (430,000)
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition of WESLHEBELE 2R T8
Gold Pearl Group (428,493)
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38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

160

(@) Acquisition of 100% equity interest in

Gold Pearl Investment Limited and its
subsidiaries (Continued)

Included in the loss for the year was approximately
HK$4,116,000 of profit attributable from Gold Pearl Group.
Revenue for the year includes approximately HK$58,492,000
generated from Gold Pearl Group. Had the acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2017, total Group revenue for the
year would have been approximately HK$475,315,000,
and loss for the year would have been approximately
HK$198,316,000. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue
and results of operations, of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on
1 January 2017, nor is it intended to be a projection of future
results.
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H B A 7] 2100% k% 2 1
= (@)
FEEEEEELREEHER G
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38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) Acquisition of 51% equity interest in Anhui
Tongxin Chemical Company Limited
On 19 September 2017, the Group completed the JrA—_—=
acquisition of 51% equity interests in Anhui Tongxin Chemical
Company Limited ("Anhui Tongxin") from an independent third
party at a consideration of approximately HK$47,086,000 in

g L) NGRS D)

51%/% A R &=

{t THER A A

(b) WEZHBELEIERAR

—tFNA+IA AEER
B 1R — & B = 5 W Z R
([ZERL]) Z251%
&% A #E % - R (B A47,086,0005% 7T

cash. NIRE T AT
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Anhui ZRE O U B B2 Al 5B E &
Tongxin as at date of acquisition were as follows: BEZAFERT:
HK$’ 000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment L ER Y 307,986
Prepaid lease payments A E 8 21,254
Inventories 75 56,577
Account receivables FE Y BR TR 9,984
Other receivables, deposit and prepayments bl e KRS HRIE 92,907
Pledged bank deposits EEBRITER 118,130
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTAS 6,982
Trade payables FERTBR X (261,234)
Bank loans and other borrowings FRITE \Uf\&ﬁ'f@:{ﬁg (228,159)
Other payables and accruals HAth FE A5 SR R FE AT AT 63,511)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRVHEE BN FEERE 60,916
Non-controlling interests e A o (26,768)
Goodwill BES 12,938
Total consideration satisfied by cash NIREZ Tz BRE 47,086
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WEEEA 2R SR FRE
Cash and cash equivalent acquired BlEzAERRESEEY 6,982
Cash consideration ReERE (47,086)
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition of WEZRRALEE 2B RLFE
Anhui Tongxin (40,104)
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38.

39.

162

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) Acquisition of 51% equity interest in
Anhui Tongxin Chemical Company Limited
(Continued)

Included in the loss for the year was approximately
HK$22,404,000 of loss attributable from Anhui
Tongxin. Revenue for the year includes approximately
HK$199,694,000 generated from Anhui Tongxin. Had
the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2017, total
Group revenue for the year would have been approximately
HK$1,107,843,000, and loss for the year would have been
approximately HK$219,103,000. The pro forma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations, of the Group
that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2017, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 19 January 2017, the Group completed the acquisition of 65%
equity interests in Wealth Pioneer Group Limited and its subsidiaries
(“Wealth Pioneer Group”) at a consideration of HK$900 million
which was satisfied as to HK$400 million by cash and HK$500
million by issuance of promissory notes. The principal asset of
Wealth Pioneer Group is 60% equity interest in the potassium
feldspar mine located in Shaanxi Province, the PRC. The in-
pit indicated and inferred mineral resource estimates for the
potassium feldspar mine were approximately 63.2 million tonnes
and approximately 40.5 million tonnes respectively. During the year
under review, no revenue was generated by the potassium feldspar
mine as the operation was still under development.
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390. ZBWRBHEARWEEE

RZZE—tF—A+ B AEEBETK
Iz 8% Wealth Pioneer Group Limited &2 £ K
B A 7 ([Wealth Pioneert= E |) 265%
% AN 25 0 X 8 £900,000,000% It
& 400,000,000/ LA € X+
500,000,00078 7T Bl LA B 1T 74, =45 S 1+t o
Wealth Pioneerf= B #) = B & E 2L
PR7EA 9 R ATERI60% A Atz - #F R A
Bz iEs RIEHEYEREMT DN A
63,200,000 X 40,500,000 ° 72 [2] B8 4
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39. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH

40.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

30. ZBWBEHEBATAKBEE (&)

HK$’'000
FH&T
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition BB ESE 2R e RLFE
Total consideration BRE (900,000)
Prepayment for acquisition in prior year FFEWE 2 B RIA 845,712
Cash and cash equivalent acquired WEzHEeRIREEEY 722
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition of B Uy B Wealth Pioneerss Bl & 4 2
Wealth Pioneer Group RE ML F5E (53,566)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 40. £@TH
Categories of financial instruments c@MTEER
2017 2016
—E—+F —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTEx FH&T
Financial assets MEEE
Loans and receivables (including cash and ERRERR(BERER
cash equivalents) ReEEY) 1,079,611 2,706,621
Financial liabilities MEaE
Amortised cost BESHRR 1,525,984 867,914
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41.

164

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s treasury department, including the board of directors

meets periodically to analyse and formulate strategies to manage
and monitor the Group’s exposure to variety of risk associate with
financial instruments which arise from the Group’s operating and
investing activities. Generally, the Group employs conservative
strategies regarding its risk management to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner. The

risks include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk
and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

(@) Market risk

@

Foreign exchange risk

The business transactions of the Group conducted
during the year were mainly denominated and settled
in either RMB or HKD. The Group currently does not
have hedging policy in respect of the foreign currency
risk. However, management monitors the related
foreign currency risk exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency risk exposure
should the needs arise.

Based on the market condition at end of reporting
period, the Group determined that it is reasonably
possible for RMB to strengthen/weaken by 10%
against HKD in the coming twelve months (2016:
10%). Hence, 10% are the sensitivity rates used in
the current year when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represent
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and based on the
assumption that other variables are held constant. A
positive number below indicates an increase in profit or
equity where RMB strengthens 10% against HKD. For
a 10% weakening of RMB against HKD, there would
be a comparable impact on the profit or equity, and the
balances below would be negative.
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41.

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

4.

Bk EE R ERBR (F)

(@ ™mHEEE (&)
0 HERE (K

2017 2016

—ZE—+tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHT

Profit or loss' i I =X A 1E 26,396 25,221

Equity? e 752 207,933 216,675
Notes: B -

)

This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding
on receivable and payable denominated in RMB at the
end of the reporting period.

This is mainly attributable to the reserves which are
denominated in RMB included in equity at the end of
the reporting period.

In the opinion of the management, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign
exchange risk because the exposure at the end of the
reporting period does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

(1) EERRARBEHEEER
AN RBEEHE 2 YR K
FEAS SR 2 2 L o

(@ FEXRgRMEHRHELER
UARBHEL AR 2
T~

@ EEERR BEEIMD
REAREINERR  REZ
NBRERREEBFEEZ
TR\ B 3 A1 2 BR 4 73 AT T 6

B o
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41.

166

—tFF—A=1—HILFE

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Interest rate risk

The Group does not have material exposure to interest
rate risk, as the Group has no financial assets and
liabilities of material amounts with floating interest rate
except for bank borrowings. The sensitivity analysis
below have been determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for bank borrowings at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
the financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. A
50 basis points increase or decrease in interest rate is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2016: 50
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year
ended 31 December 2017 would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$4,238,000 (2016: approximately
HK$1,806,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate
borrowings. Changes in interest rates have no impact
on other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: Nil).

Other price risk

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not exposed
to equity price risks as the Group did not have any
equity investments at the end of the reporting period.
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41.

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Credit risk

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Credit risk on trade receivable is minimal because most of
the transactions related to mining operation were made on
cash basis with no credit term given to its customers, except
for sizable customers and with good credit history with the
Group.

Credit risk on cash and bank balances is mitigated as
counterparties are banks or financial institutions with high
credit rating which is issued by some international external
rating agencies.

Credit risk of deposit and other receivables is significantly
mitigated as the Group performs ongoing credit evaluation
on the financial condition of its debtors and tightly monitors
the ageing of the receivables balances. Follow up action is
taken in case of overdue balances. In addition, management
reviews the recoverable amount of the receivables individually
or collectively at end of reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts.

41. EREEEERBEK (#)

(b)
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168

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term. The Group has net current liabilities of
approximately HK$329,089,000 (2016: net current assets
approximately HK$1,036,090,000) and net assets of
approximately HK$4,607,042,000 at 31 December 2017
(2016: HK$3,426,230,000). In the opinion of directors, the
Group’s exposure to liquidity risk is limited.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at each of end of reporting period of the Group’s
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payment computed using contractual rate or, if floating based

—tFFZA=1—HILFE

(c)

ﬁ*fiﬁ &B(Eﬁ (nlﬁ)
REES @R

AEBZBEREHREZEERSE
SRR -BREFTHRESHE B
NEBNERRBZ B ESF K-
RZTE—+tFE+=ZA=+—H8'&
SEZRBEBEFEREEFES
B 49 £329,089,000/8 7T ( =& — /X
F 7R ) & = B %91,036,090,000
770 ) M #94,607,042,0008 7T (=&
— 7N :3,426,230,000/8 7T ) cE =
wuﬁ $E.E¥TZ/AL§J§1H ﬁ
MR

T%‘$§|J$E@3Em$ﬁﬁ%i%f§ =3
HEHREE R ZRHRE 2HIE
ﬁ')’ﬂﬁ%ﬁé-ﬁ'ﬂﬂiﬂﬁfﬁfﬁ/i\ﬁi(@
%Ehzﬂi’]ﬂ“”: X AN % B BIHR A e

SHMAEERZERNMXGFEZH

on current rates at end of reporting period) and the earliest BYXH)EAEEREFEENR 2
date the Group may be required to pay: EREMmMSH
2017 —E—tF
Weighted On demand
average or less than 1-3 3 months Over
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 1 years Total
ME¥S EEXZ -fAZ =fiRZE
Filk:s R-fEAR =f@A -% HB—F &t
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TiEx FhEx THEx T Tix
Trade and bill payables ENEARER - 184,859 - - - 184,859
Other payables and accruals Etb B RETER - 148,775 - - - 148,775
Bank loans and other borrowings ROERREMEE 512 368,653 32,466 350,662 512,056 1,272,837
Convertible Bonds MRRER 10 - - 383,722 - 383,722
702,287 32,466 743,384 512,056 1,990,193
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41. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND M. EREEBEERBUER (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) RBELSER (&)
2016 —E-XxEF
Weighted On demand
average or less than 1-3 3 months Over
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 1 years Total
MEFH EEks —fARZ Az
ik R—EAR =f@A —£ BR—F At
% HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TAL TR TR TR T
Trade and bill payables ERERRRE - 70,599 - - - 70,599
Other payables and accruals HENTRETER - 95,677 - - - 95,677
Bank loans and other borrowings RITEFRAMES 10.8-12 - - 361,167 - 361,167
Convertiole Bonds RRES 10 - - - 418,606 418,606
166,276 - 361,167 418,606 946,049
(d) Fair value of financial instruments d =MIAZQFE
The directors of the Company consider the fair value of ARREERAE AEEVBKEEK
the Group’s financial assets and liabilities are not materially BEZ AT EHEERLGS VSRR
different from their carrying amounts as stated in the KANZV 2 RHETESEREL-
consolidated statement of financial position.
42. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 42, EXERE

Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders of
the Company. The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are:

(@ To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

(o)  To support the Group'’s stability and growth; and

(¢)  To provide capital for the purpose of the strengthening the
Group’s risk management capability.

BADEADTEREA AR 2%
AEBEAER I TBAEA:

(@) WBRASEIHELS BERRKRE
R ER - REMERS A ARIER

N

S

B

SR AEEBEER: &

© REEARUIMERRNERZ AR EE

2k,
Be /J °
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42.

170

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to ensure optimal capital structure and shareholder
returns, taking into consideration the future capital requirements
of the Group and capital efficiency, prevailing and projected
profitability, projected operating cash flows, projected capital
expenditures, and projected strategic investment opportunities. The
Group has not adopted any formal dividend policy.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group’s total capital
comprises all components of equity and net debt includes bank
borrowing, trade and bill payables, other payables and accruals and
convertible bonds, less cash and cash equivalents:

The Group’s gearing ratio at 31 December 2017 and 2016 was as

42.

EXEE ()
AEEREEHRNRERLEARE
BREARBRBRERESEKT I
ARAREZ RRERTRRE AR
RS REHBFES FHEERSRE -
BABARIARBEHRBERERE K
£ [ 3 4% SR AR £ 1A IE = AR BRSE -

AEBEMAERBELE (A BEFRR
NREARIMERFR) ERERRR - NE
BrBERBEMARS ZAKED M
BEFRUBSRITER BNERIARE
B AR SRR R B R IA R AT AR R
o HBREMASEEY -

AEBR-_ZE—tFR_ZT—XF+=A

follows: =t+—HAZEXRBELEQNT
The Group
£
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RK

HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT THET
Debts afE 1,525,984 867,914
Cash and cash equivalents HehBHeEEY (56,097) (596,003)
Net debts BfEERE 1,469,887 271,911
Equity T 4,607,042 3,426,230
Gearing ratio BEAEKTE 31.91% 7.94%
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 43. AR B HBMR R #EER
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

31 December 31 December

2017 2016
—E—+t5F —E—RF
+=B=+-H8 +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
ASSETS BE
Non-Current Assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NI NG 1,457,480 462,576
Current Assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — TEFRIE ~ i & & H A iE R 1,831 689
Cash and cash equivalents RehReEEY 8,760 251,865
10,591 252,554
Total Assets EE#AE 1,468,071 715,130
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRRHE
Share capital A& < 343,926 344,921
Reserves s 487,645 (322,193)
Total Equity R 831,571 22,728
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FREBEAR
Convertible bonds AR AR (& 55 - 340,471
- 340,471
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 43. AR B HBHMRR#ER (F&)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

31 December 31 December

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
+=B=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHE T
Current Liabilities REEE
Convertible bonds AR AR &S 344,686 -
Other payables and accruals HMER TR RETER 11,814 1,981
Bank loans and other borrowings RITERNHEMES 280,000 350,000
636,500 351,931
Total Liabilities EEEH 636,500 692,402
Total Equity and Liabilities EnRAEAE 1,468,071 715,130
Net Current Liabilities RBEEFE (625,909) (99,377)
Total Assets less Current Liabilities EEABRRBARE 831,571 363,199
Net Assets BEEFE 831,571 22,728
The financial statements of the Company were approved and AR BERREEETERN T —N\F=
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2018 AZ+N\BH#ERKEERZE WH T A
and signed on its behalf by: TRERE
Yang Ying Min Qian Yi Dong
BER 2 — K
Director Director
EE EE
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44.

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 43, AR B HBMR R #HER (F)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
Capital Convertible
Share Share redemption Contribution bond  Accumulated
capital premium reserve surplus reserves losses Total
R ROEE EARERE EREY TRRESRE ZitER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TEL TEL THET T TAL TAL
At1 January 2016 RZZ-—xE-A-H 318,441 3,562,405 - 115,615 - (1,746,514) 2,249,947
Loss for the year TEEBR - - - - - (2471,121) (2471,121)
Subscription of shares RERH 26,480 208,520 - - - - 235,000
Issuance of convertible bonds %47 Al ARk (5 - - - - 8,902 - 8,902
At31December 2016and ~ R=F—-AE+=A=t+-BR
1 January 2017 “2-tf-8-H 344,921 3,770,925 - 115,615 8,902 (4,217,635) 22,728
Profit for the year RERER - - - - - 818,831 818,831
Repurchase of shares R (995) (8,999) 995 - - (995) (9,988)
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F+-A=1+-8 343,926 3,761,932 99 115,615 8,902 (3,399,799) 831,671
PRINCIPALS SUBSIDIARIES 4. TEMEAT
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are as RAREEWBRARZFBEET :
follows:
Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Registered capital/ interests attributable
Name of subsidiary establishment issued capital to the Company Principal activities
WEARER HMRYL/RIE  ERER/ BRIRA RARARERFEERON FTEEH
Direct Indirect
E% Gf3
Sun Man Tai International (B.V.1.) Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary HK$274,051 100% - Investment holding
SBRTES Li@ko74,061% T RERER
Golden Finance Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2,000,000 - 100% Investment holding
EENBERAF & 422,000,000 RERR
Shanghai Yuan Bei Trading Limited PRC Registered capital - 100%  Investment holding
RMB30,000,000
FERLESERAA H & A AR 30,000,007 RERER
BOC Mantai Property Management (Shanghai) PRC Registered capital US$200,000 - 100% Properties management
Corporation Limited
PRERMEERE (LB)BRAF i A& 4200,000% T NEER
Shaanxi Province Luo Nan Xian Jiulong Kuangye PRC Registered capital = 65% Exploration and exploitation of
Company Limited (‘Jiulong Kuangye’) RMB90,000,000 molybdenum mines, sales of
molybdenum concentrates
RE&AEGNERZARAR ([WERE]) i & A& AR #90,000,0007T DREFREBREEARH
Wealth Pioneer Group Limited BVI Ordinary USD50,000 = 65% Investment holding
FRRENHE EiAHR50,000% T RERER
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44.

174

PRINCIPALS SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 4. FTEMBEAT (&)
Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Registered capital/ interests attributable
Name of subsidiary establishment issued capital to the Company Principal activities
WEAR AR HMRL/ Ry FMER/ERTRE AAREERAREEAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
B GF:3
Luo Nan Xian Da Qin Jia Mining Company Limited PRC Registered capital - 60% Exploration and exploitation of
(‘Da Qin Jia Mining’) RMB100,000,000 potassium feldspar mine, and
sale of potassium feldspar
RAGAZABERAR ([AZHE]) i & A AR 100,000,007 DREFRARABRHEENRA
Anhui Tongxin Chemical Company Limited PRC Registered capital = 51% Research and development, sales
RMB200,000,000 of chemical products
ZHRMCIBRARA Gkt & A AR #200,000,0007T B REREECSER
Xinjiang Casfavision Security Technology PRC Registered capital - 100% Research and product
Company Limited RMB10,000,000 development of face recognition
technology and intelligent
video analysis technology and
application
MRPREAZHRBRERAT i A& A AR 10,000,007 N EnlUeam el
K EmERERER
Xinjiang Xintongxing Telecommunication PRC Registered capital = 100% Research and product
Engineering Company Limited RMB5,000,000 development of face recognition
technology and intelligent
video analysis technology and
application
MEMRRBEIRARAR il & A AR 5,000,000 NGNS AP
R ERERRER
Changji Zhundong Economic and Technological PRC Registered capital = 100% Research and product
Development Zone Casiavision Security Technology RMB5,000,000 development of face recognition
Development Company Limited technology and intelligent
video analysis technology and
application
EEEREERMREERREARE i & AR AR 5,000,007 INEIBUNELpaiEs kit
ERERAA R ERERRER
The above list contains only particulars of subsidiaries which RSB ESIEFEXEARAEENER
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. BESIBENMB ARG
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45.

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
of the Group that has material non-controlling interests as at 31
December 2017:

Proportion of ownership interests

45.

and voting rights held by non-

ERFERER
W_F—tF+-A=+—0 BHEA
SR 2 AR R AREH B AR
HERFIIT

Losses allocated to non-controlling  Accumulated of non-controlling

Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation controlling interests interests interests
FERBERA 2 RAARER
WEARER sy RRELLA AREFERERZER FERER 2R
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
—E-tf ZTRE “R-tE it S “g-tE It b3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THL TER TET
Jidlong Kuangye PRC 35% 35% (5,792) (35,971) 81,154 86,946
NERR PE
Da Qin Jia Mining PRC 40% N/A (17,249) N/A 1,409,196 N/A
il i TER FER Gyl
Anhui Tongxin PRC 49% N/A (12,391) N/A 14,376 N/A
ZHRDL HE TER TER Gyl
(35,432) (35,971) 1,504,726 86,946

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group’s
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations as at 31 December 2017.

TXHIFEEERFERERANAEESHER
AZREPBEER - U T HEMHER KRR =
E—t+tF+-_A=t"BHEEARHH S

B
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45. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 45. ERFERER (&)

(Continued)
Summarised consolidated statement of financial hEREE AEHFBERZRELRZ
position of Jiulong Kuangye, Da Qin Jia Mining E—tF+-A=Z+—HZRBELRSE
and Anhui Tongxin as at 31 December 2017 B AR #R &
Jiulong Da Qin Jia Anhui
Kuangye Mining Tongxin Total
hEEE AEHE ZHRE L &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET THET THET
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,502,303 2,499,634 339,344 4,341,281
Current assets mEEE 463,734 1,248 272,552 737,534
Total assets BEE 1,966,037 2,500,882 611,896 5,078,815
Non-current liabilities FREaR 379,593 222,142 - 601,735
Current liabilties mEBE 1,455,656 - 571,286 2,026,942
Total liabilities BaE 1,835,249 222,142 571,286 2,628,677
Equity % 130,788 2,278,740 40,610 2,450,138
Summarised statement of profit or loss and other NEREE AEHBRZRBERORE
comprehensive income of Jiulong Kuangye, Da BE-EB—tF+ZA=1+—BHLEFE
Qin Jia Mining and Anhui Tongxin for the year ZHEFREEERAEMZERER
ended 31 December 2017
Jiulong Da Qin Jia Anhui
Kuangye Mining Tongxin Total
NERE AEHR ZHRE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT THET FTHET
Revenue WA 184,588 - 199,694 384,282
Loss before income tax BRI ATER (29,952) (24,501) (23,973) (78,426)
Taxation #E 12,642 - - 12,642
Loss for th year AEEERE (17,310) (24,501) (23,973) (65,784)
Loss attributable to Non-controlling interests 3F#2 R 5 & {5 518 (5,792) (17,249) (12,391) (35,432)
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45. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(Continued)

45.

Summarised consolidated statement of cash
flow of Jiulong Kuangye, Da Qin Jia Mining and

ERFERESR (8)

NERE  KRFBRZRBELRE
E-E—tHF+-A=+—HLFE

Anhui Tongxin for the year ended 31 December ZREGERERER
2017
Jiulong Da Qin Jia Anhui
Kuangye Mining Tongxin Total
NEEE AEHE ZHE ait
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR TEx TR
Net cash (used in)/generated from LT (FTA) /Frig
operating activities ReFE (104,673) (125) 120,838 16,040
Net cash used in investing activities REEHMEREFE (89) (176) (2,715) (2,980)
Net cash generated from/(used injfinancing B2 & EIFTS,/ (FiA)
activties P38 121,454 4 (119,169) 2,329
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReRRESEMEM/
and cash equivalent (RL) 38 16,692 (257) (1,046) 15,389
Cash and bank balances at beginning of ~ IR & KRS SEN
the year 3,852 719 7,100 11,671
Effect of foreign exchange INEEREHNFZE T
rate changes, net (2,862) 24 (628) (3,466)
Cash and bank balances at end FRZEE RRITEH
of the year 17,682 486 5,426 23,594

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group’s
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is set out

below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations as at 31 December 2016

TXEINFEEERFERESENANEES
MBARZHEMBER - AT ENK
ERRBMR-_ZE—ARF+_HA=+—H&

BB sE AT < SRR
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45. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 45.

178

ERFERESR (8)

(Continued)
Summarised consolidated statement of financial NEBENR=-S—A"FE+=-HA=1+—
position of Jiulong Kuangye as at 31 December AZREGREHBRRBER
2016
Jiulong
Kuangye
NEEE
HK$'000
FAET
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,456,751
Current assets MEEE 433,895
Total assets BEE 1,890,646
Non-current liabilities SERBEE 273,112
Current liabilities mENEE 1,596,746
Total liabilities BEE 1,869,858
Equity P = 20,788

Summarised statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of Jiulong Kuangye for

the year ended 31 December 2016

hERBENRBEZE-_ZE—A~E+=A
=t RLEECREEZREMS
M Y 3 &

Jiulong

Kuangye

JUBETE S

HK$’'000

T

Revenue & 235,065
Loss before income tax bR FT1S %1 A ES 18 (112,301)
Taxation I8 9,525
Loss for th year NEEEE (102,776)
Loss attributable to Non-controlling interests FEfE IR HE A B B 1R (35,971)
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45. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 45, ERFERER (&)

(Continued)

Summarised consolidated statement of cash
flow of Jiulong Kuangye for the year ended 31

hERBENRBE-_ZE—A~E+=A
=+ HIEEEZREZERERE

December 2016 *®
Jiulong
Kuangye
HK$’'000
FHET
Net cash generated from operating activities KETEEFTIRIR S 58 25,246
Net cash used in investing activities KEEBARE FE (3,947)
Net cash used in financing activities BB EEFT AR S F (105,277)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalent BehEeEBYRIFRE (83,978)
Cash and bank balances at beginning of the year FHIR e MIRITHEH 149,090
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net INESTE R BB 2 B TR (61,260)
Cash and bank balances at end of the year FR2BE© RIBITHEH 3,852

46. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2018.

46. HLEGZEMBHRR

FaMBHREN_ZT-\F=A=-+/\H
et RIRET -
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Summary of Financial Information

MBERBE

RESULTS ¥E
For the year ended 31 December
BZt-A=1-ALEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
ot S - —E-1F —E-TF —E-mE —5-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TFAL TATL TEL TAL
Revenue Wk 468,601 256,004 245969 454,948 158 524
(Loss)/Profit from operations me (BB) /&7 (73,157) (330,193) (818,703) (232,703) 150,200
Finance costs BEMA (121,366) (39,724) (16,949) (19,619) (22,708)
Share of results of an associate NG E 3 - - - - (138)
(Loss)/Profit before tax BEa (BR) /&7 (194,523) (369,917) (835,652) (252,322) 127,354
Taxation e 13,317 9,521 125,690 36,392 19,758
(Loss)/Profit for the year £ (BR) /&7 (181,206) (360,396) (709,962) (215,930) 147,112
Attributable to: fefs:
Owners of the Company RRRIERA (145,774) (304,425) (436,220) (165,189) 194,012
Non-controling interests FiERER (35,432) (35,971) (273,742) (50,741) (46,900)
(Loss)/Profit for the year FE(B8) /&7 (181,206) (360,396) (709,962) (215,930) 147,112
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 December
W+=B=+-AH
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E-tf —TRE —Z-1% —T-RE —T-—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHT FATL TAL TFAL
Total Assets BELE 6,537,018 4,678,456 4,462,382 5,369,011 4,894,754
Total Liabilties BELE (1,929,976) (1,252,226) (787,152) (1,045,037) (1,290,414)
4,607,042 3,426,230 3,675,630 4,323,974 3,604,340
Equity attributable to: FEfhER
Owners of the Company ARRIEEA 3,102,316 3,339,084 3,540,704 3,915,705 3,143,071
Non-controling interests R 1,504,726 86,946 134,526 408,269 461,269
4,607,042 3,426,230 3,675,230 4323974 3,604,340
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